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(IS THE SSPX SHELTERING A SEXUAL PREDATOR? 26 JULY 2019 - FR. JAMES MCLUCAS
http://ephesians-511.net/recent/docs/IS_THE_SSPX_SHELTERING_A_SEXUAL_PREDATOR.doc
(SSPX COVER-UP FROM THE FOUNDER DOWNWARD, OF MULTIPLE CASES OF PEDOPHILIA, HOMOSEXUALITY, SEXUAL ABUSE AND RAPE-01 23 JANUARY 2021/1 JULY 2021 22 PAGES*
http://ephesians-511.net/recent/docs/SSPX-COVER-UP_FROM_THE_FOUNDER_DOWNWARD_OF_MULTIPLE_CASES_OF_PEDOPHILIA_HOMOSEXUALITY_SEXUAL_ABUSE_AND_RAPE-01.doc 
 *Fr. Frédéric Abbet, Fr. Pierre de Maillard, Fr. Pierre Duverger, Fr. Philippe Peignot, Fr. Ramón Anglés, Fr. Damian Carlisle, Fr. Christophe Roisnel, [Fr. Benoît Wailliez, Fr. Jurgen Wegner]
(COVER-UP OF SSPX PREDATOR FR. BENEDICT VAN DER PUTTEN’S CRIMES 11 FEBRUARY 2021 
http://ephesians-511.net/recent/docs/COVER-UP_OF_SSPX_PREDATOR_FR_BENEDICT_VAN_DER_PUTTENS_CRIMES.doc
*IMAGES & VIDEOS THAT ARE IN THE 23 JANUARY 2021 FILE ARE NOT REPRODUCED HERE
SSPX defends alleged sexual predator
Fr. McLucas has never denied sleeping with young woman he was counseling
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/sspx-defends-sexual-predator-in-its-ranks 
July 24, 2019 - Some images omitted
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Journalists asking Fr. Peignot in 2016 to answer questions about allegations; Peignot shoves a female reporter and orders them to leave, 2:54
In response to James Baresel's July 24 article titled "Is the SSPX Sheltering a Sexual Predator?" [http://ephesians-511.net/recent/docs/IS_THE_SSPX_SHELTERING_A_SEXUAL_PREDATOR.doc] published on Church Militant, the Society of St. Pius X (SSPX) has issued a response [SEE PAGES 39/40] accusing Church Militant of "slanderous" information about the priest in question.
The subject involves Fr. James McLucas, a diocesan priest whom the SSPX admits "occasionally helps the Society of Saint Pius X."

McLucas was sued in 2012 by a young woman, Maureen Nysewander, who alleged he took sexual advantage of her when she was seeking counseling from him for a serious eating disorder and self-esteem problems.

In spite of the SSPX's defense of this priest, McLucas has never denied that he engaged in sexual relations with her.

In fact, Cdl. Timothy Dolan of the archdiocese of New York, where McLucas formerly served, acknowledged as much in an August 2018 statement:
Fr. James McLucas was alleged to have sexually abused a 14 year old girl. However, we have an affidavit from the woman involved who states that a sexual relationship did not begin until she was in her 20's and in college. This does not excuse the behavior in any way, which is unquestionably and categorically wrong, but it is not a case of abuse of a minor. McLucas has not had an assignment since this came to our attention.
Although the sex took place when she was a young adult, he had been counseling her since the age of 14, gaining her trust during that time and presenting himself as a father figure whom she turned to for help for psychological problems she was suffering.

The fact that the SSPX deliberately leaves out mention of this in its "rebuttal" is profoundly dishonest.

The SSPX claims: "As no civil or canonical proceedings have ever found Fr. McLucas guilty, nor has he ever been charged with any crime, these accusations are profoundly defamatory."

This disingenuous statement relies on legal technicalities to exonerate McLucas.

A 2012 lawsuit filed by the woman in question, Maureen Nysewander, alleging sexual and physical abuse, ended in a settlement out of court before trial could begin. Thus the case was never tried on the merits.

Rather, McLucas' attorneys argued that Nysewander's claims were barred by the statute of limitations. When the court failed to dismiss the case based on that argument, McLucas chose to settle the lawsuit out of court instead of go to trial.

Settlements are typically the way sex abuse lawsuits are handled by dioceses, which are loath to take cases to trial, opening themselves up to the onerous discovery process, which involves depositions, witness testimony, gathering evidence, etc.. These can often be more incriminating for the defendant and can also result in much larger financial awards for the victim.

To avoid this possibility, dioceses often settle lawsuits and agree to pay the accuser a sum, while requiring that the victim sign a confidentiality agreement forbidding any public discussion of the case. This is what happened in McLucas' case. The documents, however, are freely available online on the New York court system website.

It's true that McLucas was never charged with the crime of abusing a minor, because the sexual activity took place when Nysewander was an adult. This was the reason for his objection to being named in the Pennsylvania grand jury report, which only dealt with abuse of minors, not adults.

That does not absolve McLucas of the serious moral and ethical violations of breaching his fiduciary duty as a counselor, not to mention as a Catholic priest, taking sexual advantage of a young woman in his charge when she was emotionally and psychologically vulnerable. By any accounts, this is the behavior of a sexual predator.

According to the 2012 lawsuit, McLucas offered Nysewander counseling beginning at the age of 14 when she was suffering from a serious eating disorder and other self-esteem problems. Their counseling sessions continued on a weekly basis for years, increasing to every other day, and eventually every day by phone. In return for counseling, her parents offered McLucas donations.
In 2007, when Nysewander was 21, while McLucas was still offering her daily counseling sessions by phone, the priest allegedly confessed romantic feelings for her and persuaded her to get involved in a sexual relationship.

He reportedly told her, "I am a priest and I would tell you if it was not right," and "the church rejected me so I am free to have sexual relations." Believing him as a priest, as her counselor and as an authority figure, she began engaging in sexual relations with him in 2007, continuing through 2009.

The lawsuit states that McLucas convinced her parents to fly her to New York in 2007 to visit him for counseling. In spite of telling her parents she'd be staying at his home with his mother, he reportedly took her to the Marriott Hotel in Poughkeepsie, where he spent five days engaging in sexual relations with her "as he convinced her it was therapeutic."

While she was a student at St. Anselm College, McLucas reportedly visited her on a weekly basis and engaged in physical relations with her. He continued to attempt to engage in sex with Nysewander up until 2011, when Nysewander cut off the relationship and sought counseling from a different therapist, realizing that he had taken advantage or her when she was in a vulnerable state.
FSSP

Church Militant confirmed with the U.S. District headquarters of the FSSP that McLucas was an associate member (but never a priest) of the FSSP in 2000, when he began counseling the 14-year-old Nysewander. McLucas left that same year and the FSSP maintained no contact with him afterward.

According to a statement by Nancy LaRoza, administrative assistant at FSSP U.S. District headquarters, "Fr. McLucas was only temporarily incorporated ad annum with the FSSP from 1997 to March of 2000, with the permission of the Archdiocese of New York. He left in March 2000 and has had no association with the Priestly Fraternity of St. Peter since then."

In 2007, when the abuse began, the FSSP had no contact with McLucas and did not know of his whereabouts.

Although the 2012 lawsuit by Nysewander names the FSSP as a defendant, the court eventually removed the FSSP as a defendant and the organization was not held liable for McLucas' abuse.

McLucas is also forbidden to minister as a priest in the archdiocese of New York and the diocese of Harrisburg, Pennsylvania. The SSPX, however, has been content to welcome him.
Contacting the SSPX

James Baresel noted in his article, "SSPX priest Nicholas Stamos informed me by phone on July 18 that McLucas is still participating in the organization's work."

The SSPX asserts in its response, "Neither Fr. Stamos nor anyone at the latter priory ever heard from Church Militant. Is this Catholic journalism?"

Baresel is not employed by Church Militant, but submitted a single article for publication as a freelance writer. It was Baresel reaching out in his private capacity as a freelancer — and not as an agent of Church Militant — that he spoke with Fr. Stamos. Thus the SSPX's claim that they had not heard directly "from Church Militant" is at a minimum erroneous, if not disingenuous.
Fr. Eduard Perrone

The SSPX goes on to compare Church Militant's report on McLucas to our coverage of the case of Fr. Eduard Perrone, recently placed on a leave of absence based on a single 40-year-old allegation of abuse that arose through a "repressed memory."

The cases are not remotely alike. McLucas has never denied the allegations in question, namely having sex with a young woman he had been counseling from a young age. Father Perrone, on the other hand, has categorically denied the abuse allegation and has never admitted to engaging in any physical or inappropriate relations ever as a priest, nor has he ever been the subject of a sex abuse lawsuit, nor is there any evidence he has engaged in any inappropriate behavior with anyone before or during his priesthood.
Other Evidence of Protecting Sexual Predators

This is not the first time the SSPX has been accused of protecting sexual predators. Several cases involve abuse cover-up by members of the SSPX, including two that directly implicate former superior general Bp. Bernard Fellay.
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Fr. Philippe Peignot

A 2017 report from Swedish media shows Fellay lifted a ban on a priest who was eventually found guilty of abusing a minor.

According to the victim, "Andre," who grew up in a family "with strong ties to the SSPX," he was first introduced to Fr. Philippe Peignot at age 11.

"He made me sit on his lap, which became a regular thing," said Andre. "I was wearing Bermuda shorts that day, and he slid his hand along my thigh and touched my genitals."

The abuse continued for a year, even though Andre informed the priest's superior. Nothing was done, so he wrote to Fr. Schmidberger, then superior general of the SSPX.

According to the report:

Father [Peignot] was moved to a new congregation after that letter. No police report was ever submitted, but Andre and his family were assured that Father P would never work with children or young people again. But twelve years after being molested, Andre saw an invitation to a scout camp led by Father P.

Outraged that his molester was allowed to work with children, Andre wrote to the SSPX, which sent Fr. Niklaus Pfluger to investigate.

Andre preserved a secret audio recording of his meeting with Pfluger, who admits in the meeting not only that Peignot had been banned from working with children, but that on two separate occasions, Schmidburger and later Fellay lifted the ban.

"Unfortunately, children are already talking to one another, so your reputation is seriously at stake, as well as that of the priesthood's," read Pfluger from the letter to Peignot. "For this reason I have no choice but to confirm the decision set down in the letter dated 25 May, that I ban you from all apostolates, especially with young people."
That ban, as Pfluger admitted, had been lifted by Fellay.
"Once again, we made an exception, just like Father Schmidberger nine years earlier," Pfluger admits in the audio recording.

The SSPX even allowed Peignot to help lead a pilgrimage to Turkey in 2008.

After Andre took his complaint to the Vatican, the Vatican authorized the SSPX to begin a canonical trial against Peignot, which found him guilty of sex abuse.

Father Peignot left the SSPX in 2014 to join the SSPX Resistance, where he continues to offer the sacraments. Even so, the SSPX has welcomed Peignot to its events, allowing him to attend the SSPX's annual priestly ordination in Econe, Switzerland in 2016, where he took part in the procession and Mass along with other SSPX priests.
Kevin Sloniker
Another case involves Kevin Sloniker, given life in prison after he was found guilty of abusing seven boys aged 8–14 over the span of 10 years. The abuse took place while Sloniker served as youth camp counselor at the SSPX's Immaculate Conception Church in Coeur D'Alene, Idaho.

Police reports reveal that, in spite of being told of Sloniker's behavior, SSPX leadership failed to act against the predator. One young victim even informed SSPX priests that he had been stripped naked and whipped by Sloniker, but the SSPX failed to remove Sloniker's access to children.
Fr. Christophe Roisnel

In 2017, Fr. Christophe Roisnel was sentenced to 19 years in prison for rape and torture of three women. The women had been teachers at the same SSPX school that Roisnel ran, Notre-Dame de la Sablonnière, in Goussonville (Yvelines).

The victims accused him of sexually assaulting them during exorcisms, where he claimed he could "overcome evil with evil." His ploy was to get them to relive the trauma of past sexual assaults by experiencing them again through him, in order to "overcome them."

Charged and imprisoned in 2014, his sentence was increased from 16 to 19 years in 2017.

Roisnel himself admitted to engaging in sex with the women, but claimed it was "consensual."

A previous SSPX trial had found Roisnel guilty of rape, but instead of reporting him to law enforcement, Roisnel was hidden away in a Capuchin monastery in Burgundy, where he was ordered to do two years of prayer and penance before he could be restored to active ministry. All of this was done with the knowledge and approval of then-Superior General Bp. Fellay.

The police found Roisnel at the monastery in 2014 and arrested him.

As is the case with so many bishops today, Fellay seemed more concerned with protecting the image and reputation of the SSPX than protecting victims.
Protecting Victims?

In spite of the SSPX's claims that it is "committed to protecting all minors and vulnerable adults," its track record in these cases indicates the opposite. The fact that it would deliberately leave out incriminating facts about Fr. McLucas' case in an attempt to deflect blame is even more troubling, and denotes disingenuousness and dishonesty on the part of the SSPX.

In response to the SSPX's demand that Church Militant "retract its scandalous article," Church Militant stands by the report and will do no such thing, noting that the only scandal here is the SSPX's continued defense of a sexual predator.

7/25/2019, 7/26/2019: This article was updated with information on Fr. Christophe Roisnel, SSPX
Church Militant’s response to SSPX
Further half-truths, deceptions propagated by Society
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/church-militants-response-to-sspx 
April 23, 2020 
One day after Church Militant's groundbreaking exposé detailing decades-long history of abuse and cover-up in the Society of St. Pius X (SSPX) [SEE IN 23 JANUARY 2021 FILE, ON PAGE 9], the SSPX has issued an official response (since deleted) [https://sspx.org/en/publications/newsletters/us-district-responds-church-militant-57641], which contains a number of evasions, half-truths and inaccuracies that require a response. Most telling is not so much what the SSPX says, but rather its silence on so much of what Church Militant reported in our exposé.
Ad Hominem

The SSPX attempts to justify its stonewalling, silence and lack of transparency as a refusal to be "baited" by Church Militant, which it dismisses as "tabloid journalism" whose only purpose in reporting on the SSPX is to "generate web-clicks and revenue while hoping to stoke the fires of public controversy."

Church Militant has been at the forefront of exposing corruption, abuse and cover-up at all levels of the Church, with a strong track record of serious investigative journalism exposing the grave misdeeds of predator clergy and their protectors. The McCarrick revelations, the Pennsylvania grand jury report, the resignation of Cdl. Donald Wuerl, the bombshell testimony of Abp. Carlo Maria Viganò revealing a "corrupt gay mafia" strangling the Church — in short, the Summer of Shame vindicated everything Church Militant has been saying — often a lone voice in the wilderness — for years.
No serious Catholic with integrity would dismiss our work as merely clickbait in order to generate revenue. Thus the SSPX's dismissal of Church Militant's reportage can only be seen as a pathetic attempt at further evasion and subterfuge, more typical of the tactics of liberal, cover-up bishops we've encountered, who shoot the messenger rather than answer difficult questions about their role in protecting predator priests. We are all too familiar with such maneuvers.

'Prudence'

The SSPX's claim that it wouldn't answer Church Militant's questions as a matter of "prudence" in order to avoid a "public war of words" is also disproven by their deeply embarrassing leaked emails, exposing leadership's strategizing on how to prevent Church Militant from knowing too much about Fr. Pierre Duverger's case — a case Vogel admits would be viewed as "bizarre" by the public because he's allowed to run a school while the subject of multiple sexual assault allegations — allegations known for at least two years that Fr. Wegner admitted directly to Jassy Jacas the SSPX never investigated.

The SSPX emails reveal one motive alone: how best to hide the truth from the public. James Vogel's admission about "ugly cases in France" (cases that involved the intervention of two superiors general — Franz Schmidberger and Bernard Fellay — to shuffle a pederast to another congregation, or lift his ban so as to allow him to be around children) as well as his admission that Church Militant would find a "gold mine" in Jassy's allegations suffice to expose their agenda.

It is thus laughable that the SSPX would charge Church Militant with a supposed "gross lack of ethics" for publishing the emails, when their strategizing to cover up the truth is the very definition of a "gross lack of ethics."
The Society's claim that it "cooperates with all police or other official investigations" is also demonstrably false. The Kansas Bureau of Investigation revealed to Church Militant that the SSPX stonewalled their investigation, dragging its feet in response to a subpoena inquisition the KBI submitted in November. It took months for the SSPX to respond with the documents, when the subpoena could have easily been responded to in a matter of two weeks or less — the expected response time for subpoena inquisitions of that nature.

The Criminal Investigation

The SSPX statement also attempts to cast doubt on the existence of a criminal investigation against multiple SSPX clergy — another false statement, as the KBI confirmed directly with Church Militant that this criminal investigation has been ongoing for approximately a year, and that it involves multiple clergy. In an email to Church Militant, Fr. Wegner himself admits there is a criminal investigation of SSPX clergy. While the name of Fr. Pierre Duverger has already been made public (thanks to the whistleblowing of Jassy Jacas), other SSPX clergy under investigation may not necessarily be known to the SSPX, and we are not at liberty to disclose their names so as not to compromise the investigation.

As to Fr. Jurgen Wegner's transfer to Austria, the assignment was announced in the middle of the criminal investigation, and comes at a highly convenient time. In spite of whatever treaties exist between the United States and Austria, the SSPX is fully aware that investigations are made infinitely more difficult when a priest is moved across state lines, cutting off investigators' access to the subject under investigation.

Church Militant has learned, however, that this is standard operating procedure for the SSPX, shuffling predator clergy — and those who cover for them — from one country to another, never informing their new flock of their priests' past misdeeds, in the hopes others will not find out. This makes the SSPX no different from "Novus Ordo" cover-up bishops who transferred guilty clergy from one place to another, never warning the flock about the priest's crimes.
The SSPX admits there have been "serious and tragic individual cases of abuse" by their own clergy — including those Church Militant exposed in our report:

(The conviction and imprisonment of SSPX priest Fr. Christophe Roisnel in 2016 for the rape and torture of three women (a priest Fellay was willing to let loose after only two years of prayer and penance in a monastery)

(The conviction and imprisonment of SSPX priest Fr. Frédéric Abbet in 2017 for sexually abusing three boys (more details below)

(The conviction and imprisonment of Fr. Uribe Silviano Bernabe in 2013 for sexually assaulting a girl and an adult woman

(The canonical conviction of SSPX priest Fr. Philippe Peignot in 2014 for sexually abusing boys (whose ban on access to children was lifted by Fellay)

(The sexual abuse of multiple boys by former SSPX priest Fr. Douglas Laudenschlager in the 1980s, one of the first U.S. priests ordained by Abp. Lefebvre

As we said in our report, this is only the tip of the iceberg. Church Militant did not touch on the protection of gay pederast Fr. Carlos Urrutigoity by then-Fr. Alfonso de Galarreta when he was district superior of the SSPX in Argentina. Galarreta was made known of multiple charges of homosexual predation by Urrutigoity, who was a seminarian at the time, yet did nothing, leading to such exasperation by others at the seminary that a dossier of Urrutigoity's misconduct and Galarreta's failure to act was sent to Abp. Marcel Lefebvre.

There is much, much more. Church Militant is well aware of multiple other SSPX clergy and brothers all over the world who have sexually groomed, assaulted and raped victims, in some cases fathering illegitimate children with them while forcing the victims to remain silent and then abandoning the children — all with the knowledge of SSPX leadership.

Church Militant has confirmed that these priests still minister in various SSPX chapels to this very day.
With regard to the SSPX's so-called cooperation with Belgian authorities in the criminal trial of Fr. Abbet, the SSPX fails to mention that Bp. Fellay (as we exposed in our report) personally sent his private secretary, Fr. Raphael Granges (a lawyer), to accompany Abbet to the courthouse daily. Granges dressed in lay clothes in order to escape notice.
The SSPX also fails to mention that an SSPX tribunal cleared Abbet of guilt years earlier when other sex abuse allegations came to light — allegations brought by distraught parents when they discovered their child had been abused by the priest. The SSPX leadership assured the parents they would handle the matter, asking that they not go public with their allegations — only for the SSPX to set up a tribunal to formally clear Abbet of guilt. It would take a secular court to deliver the justice the SSPX canonical court refused to serve.

'Lack of Infrastructure'

It's also laughable that the SSPX blames its failure to report known abusers to police on a "lack of infrastructure." As if a "lack of infrastructure" is what prompted Fellay to lift a ban on gay pederast Fr. Philippe Peignot (found guilty of abusing an 11-year-old boy, among others), allowing him to be around more young boys.

As if "lack of infrastructure" is what prompted Schmidberger to sit on the allegations against Peignot for a year — before transferring him to another congregation, where he would go on to abuse more boys.

As if "lack of infrastructure" is what prompted Lefebvre to ordain a known homosexual predator who had earlier been kicked out of the SSPX seminary for his sexual propositioning of a seminarian.

As if lack of infrastructure is what prompted Fellay to limit rapist Fr. Roisnel's punishment to two years of prayer and penance in a monastery before letting him loose. Thanks be to God the police found him and delivered him to justice, rather than waiting on the soft "justice" of the SSPX.

Was it that "lack of infrastructure" that led three SSPX priests to counsel Kyle White not to report child rapist Peter Palmeri to police?

Was it that "lack of infrastructure" that prompted Fellay to move pederast Fr. Abbet to live in a priory right next door to a school, where he abused three boys? We could go on, but the point is clear.

This "lack of infrastructure" is the exact same excuse we've heard before from so many cover-up bishops to justify their failure to report predators to police in times past, instead sending them off to do prayer and penance or go to rehab centers before placing them back in active ministry, where they often abused again.

The SSPX claims to be fully "committed to transparency." That is yet to be seen, proven by its latest statement full of evasions and deceptions, only lending further weight to our report exposing the SSPX as a bastion of cover-up and corruption, carrying on its work under the cloak of piety and traditionalism. Because of their promotion of orthodoxy and a reverent liturgy, their betrayal can rightly be viewed as far greater than that of other clergy.

Victims and witnesses of abuse by the SSPX or other clergy can contact the Kansas Bureau of Investigation at clergyabuse@kbi.ks.gov or they can call 1 (800) KS-Crime (1-800-572-7463).
‘A gold mine’ of abuse

SSPX: Sympathetic to perverts
https://www.churchmilitant.com/video/episode/vortex-a-gold-mine-of-abuse                              

Michael Voris, April 23, 2020 – Premium video not accessible

One of the tragedies among many resulting from the invasion of modernism into the Church — blossoming in the aftermath of the Second Vatican Council — is the reaction from some faithful Catholics.

Since it was the celebration of the Mass itself that was the most obvious change that occurred in the Church 50 years ago, many Catholics reacted by clinging ever more tightly to the Old Rite, the Traditional Latin Mass. Various groups sprung up that essentially placed all their eggs into the basket of the Traditional Latin Mass — the most notable probably the Society of St. Pius X, commonly known as the SSPX.

In 1988, concerned that the Society, dedicated to the ancient form, would die with his death, the leader, Abp. Marcel Lefebvre, disobeyed Pope John Paul II and illicitly consecrated four bishops who would carry on the work of the Society after his death. All were immediately excommunicated and their act deemed schismatic by John Paul.

In the intervening decades, the Society has dug in its heels, forming its own hierarchy, marriage tribunals, seminaries, chapels, schools, communities and administrative arms — none of which answer to the jurisdiction of Rome.

But at the heart of the Society is its devotion to the liturgy of the Traditional Latin Mass. And while the Society itself — strictly speaking — is only a society of priests and bishops, there is a sizable portion of laity who are adherents to the Traditional Latin Mass and the Society, almost to a fault. And herein, a serious problem has arisen.

In this structure, many of the SSPX laity who are unquestioning of their clergy would never demand accountability from them. That has created an environment within the Society itself where abusive clergy can easily take advantage of children, young males and women.

There have in fact been so many cases of abuse that the Society itself has been the target of a statewide criminal investigation in Kansas. The small community of St. Mary's Kansas, a main hub of the SSPX, is the focal point of investigators' probing.

So far, the investigation has unearthed not only multiple cases of abuse by multiple priests who either are in St. Mary's or have passed through the community, but even more disturbing, a worldwide cover-up of the sexual assaults by the leadership of the Society.
In fact, given the numbers of abusing priests, the number of victims and the number of leaders involved in the cover-up, the scale of the scandal almost dwarfs the homopredator clergy scandal that has erupted for the past 20 years across the world.

In 2000, a young man in Topeka, Kansas — Michael Gonzales — a former student at the SSPX school in St. Mary's, Kansas, blew his brains out — unable to cope any longer with the effects of being raped by an SSPX priest. That priest is roaming about freely, even with privileged status, despite being named in young Michael's suicide note.

In fact, story after story that Church Militant has become familiar with over our three- to four-month Spotlight investigation, the patterns repeat with frightening regularity.

Abusive clergy — their abuse known with certainty by leaders and administrators — are simply moved around and sent right back to schools and chapels and seminaries with no one being able to question anything without being told they would be committing a mortal sin.

In this area, the SSPX has severely abused any spiritual authority they think they have, hiding behind the rituals and professing a greater loyalty to the Catholic faith than other Catholics they sometimes hold in disdain for attending Novus Ordo Masses. But the loyalty to the Faith, for not a few, is only ritual-deep.

Once Church Militant had discovered the pattern — again, internationally spread — we contacted the SSPX and asked for comments.

In responding to our inquiries, they did not realize they accidentally copied us on their internal e-mails — e-mails that reveal fear Church Militant would come to discover what the Society itself, in those e-mails, termed a "gold mine" of abuse and cover-up.

James Vogel, the lay communications director for the U.S. District of the SSPX as well as editor-in-chief for the Society's Angelus Press, counsels senior clergy that it would be bad if they said nothing in response to Church Militant's probing.

Here is one of the relevant lines from his e-mail — an e-mail, remember, that he and they thought was a private communication between them about the specific case we were asking about — a priest who was an abuser being transferred to another assignment within the world of the SSPX: "We can admit he's been placed under restrictions, but I still think MOST people will find it bizarre he is allowed to teach/run a school under the circumstances."

Uh, yes —most people would absolutely find it bizarre, because it is.

But the trove of private e-mails, where they freely admit Church Militant doing this investigation is going to be a big problem for them, reveals a stunning admission: "Whatever we say or decide, it will not end with Fr. [Pierre] Duverger; [it] will be a veritable 'gold mine' for them." 
A private communication freely discussing and admitting that the abuse cases and accompanying cover-ups "will be a veritable gold mine" is an earth-shattering betrayal of trust to the Catholic laity who placed total trust in these men.

In one section of the e-mail string, Vogel and his superiors go back and forth, almost nonchalantly, about all the abuse cases and cover-ups in France, worried that Church Militant already knows about them, but deeply concerned that a Church Militant investigation will surface the same sordid history here in the United States.

Across the United States, indeed across the world for years, former employees have been fired for approaching leadership about abuse cases; victims have been told point-blank not to go to police; SSPX priests have been sentenced to hard time; abusive priests' crimes have been hidden from laity at their new assignments; and there have been suicides, wrecked lives, children placed in danger, families destroyed or broken up — an abuse of spiritual authority on a grand scale.

Undoubtedly there will be some followers of the SSPX who will dismiss all this as lies, and propaganda, and hate and vitriol. They will be so blinded by their adherence to the Old Rite, that they will excuse or dismiss the suicides, broken vows, destroyed families and enormous cover-up. But hopefully, others will emerge from the shock and begin demanding accountability.

Many of these cases are a matter of public record: trial courts, prison sentences, successful lawsuits, with even some laity — fathers of families in SSPX chapels — today sitting behind bars for sexually abusing their own children, and SSPX priests initially covering it up because the men were large donors.

A love for the Latin Mass — yes, in the midst of meltdown of the Church — does not and should not excuse these monstrous crimes and more importantly, a culture of cover-up. Laity who attend SSPX chapels are not immune from the consequences of fallen human nature because they prefer Latin Masses. In fact, that love for the reverence and awe of the Old Rite has actually been turned against many of them to hide crimes and cover-ups.

The Latin Mass, on its own, is no guarantee of being preserved from the influence of the diabolical. The Church, remember, fell apart at the same time the Latin Mass was the only game in town, so to speak. Every Vatican II father had been raised in, ordained and consecrated in the Old Rite, and they were the ones who allowed things to go completely off course, laying the groundwork for the rotten fruit we see so evident today.

Our Spotlight investigation is not about theology, or supplied jurisdiction, finer points of canon law, or rehashing old arguments that still need to be settled about liceity and so forth. It's about accountability for leadership that has taken advantage of many well-intentioned Catholics — manipulated by them to believe that sexual abuse and cover-up could never happen in the Society. Not only can it, but it most definitely has, and still is.

Just ask 26-year-old Michael Gonzalez, who put a pistol in his mouth and blew his brains out — that is, if you could ask him. But you could ask his rapist, stashed away in Italy, identified in Michael's suicide note.

We know it will be hard to watch our Spotlight, available by just clicking on the provided link.

Many SSPX adherents are well-meaning Catholics who are only looking for an escape from the evils that have befallen the Church. So too was the family of young Michael Gonzalez.

SSPX whistleblower speaks

Exclusive interview with Jassy Jacas
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/exclusive-interview-jassy-jacas                           

Michael Voris, April 24, 2020 - Images/videos omitted; available in earlier report
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36:41
Christine Niles sits down with Jassy Jacas, a young woman whose allegations of grooming against SSPX priest Fr. Pierre Duverger were met with stonewalling and cover-up by leadership.
A Statement of the SSPX concerning a Church Militant Media Campaign
https://sspx.org/en/publications/newsletters/statement-sspx-concerning-church-militant-media-campaign-57736 
April 28, 2020

For the past week, the Society of Saint Pius X has been the subject of a media campaign conducted by the Church Militant website. It has been accused of having “sympathy for perverts” (sic) and of covering up for some of its members or employees who may have been guilty of misconduct. This is not the first campaign, and it will certainly not be the last. Already, in July 2019, similar accusations had been made against the Society’s authorities by Church Militant.
The Society is committed to transparency and it exercises transparency in an appropriate manner and, as far as possible, while avoiding prejudicing the rights of those involved, starting with the victims. Justice is dispensed impartially and according to the rules of law, not before a “media court” that exclusively investigates charges and distils its information with the aim of dividing or destroying, and by multiplying false and malicious insinuations.
The articles that have been published mix and match real facts with false or unbelievable accusations, in an abhorrent manner. Their authors ignore both ecclesiastical and civil legal procedures. They conduct a trial against the accused without regard to the presumption of innocence, the basic verification of facts and the rights of the defense.
In support of its alleged proofs, Church Militant produces several scandals that have occurred in Europe, mostly using truncated accounts taken from newspapers or blogs. However, all these cases have been dealt with by both ecclesiastical and civil authorities, and these cases have all been judged and closed. The Society has always collaborated with the legal authorities and has never been complicit in any “sympathy” towards persons accused of acts that are morally reprehensible.
Church Militant also refrains from stating that most of the members of the Society who have committed offences have been expelled from the Society or have been subject to exemplary punishments. Some, who refused to submit to them, preferred to leave the Society.
The U.S. District has a protection plan in place and strives to fulfill its mission to families and souls. It will not be deflected by a smear campaign that exploits cases that are highly regrettable and reprehensible and, although rare, are still too numerous.

In the interest of transparency, the Society of Saint Pius X wished to reiterate the fundamental points of its policy in this matter:
For several years now, it has put in place preventive measures in the selection and training of candidates for the priesthood, as well as in the recruitment of personnel for the institutions under its care.

The Society deeply regrets that some of its members may have engaged in serious misconduct and, in the worst cases, criminal or delinquent behavior. It is a blemish on the Catholic priesthood, on the Church, and on the work of Archbishop Marcel Lefebvre. However, that does not mean that the Society encourages them, that it protects them, or, even less, that it covers for them. On the contrary, it strives each time, according to the seriousness of the cases, to sanction them and to deal with them, according to the rules of justice, having first of all concern for the victims.

It uses the measures provided for by the laws of the Church, which foresee various kinds of sanctions, such as deprivation of office, times of probation and penance, restrictions or prohibitions of apostolate, suspension a divinis, reduction ad missam, resignation or dismissal, and even laicization, if necessary. 
These measures are taken at the end of canonical procedures, which can take some time and are covered by the secrecy of judicial inquiries and deliberations of the courts – a secrecy required by Church law.

For the most serious cases, which could constitute crimes or felonies, it collaborates with the civil authorities, either by warning them or by sharing the elements in its possession. It offers the victims assistance, encourages them to file complaints with the civil authorities – and not on social networks or websites – and accompanies them as far as possible. It informs the civil authorities of cases that require it, in accordance with the legislation of the various countries.

However, the Society has experienced several cases of false accusations by unbalanced or self-seeking persons. For this reason, these delicate matters, which have received excessive media attention, call for prudence so that justice can be dispensed serenely, in all truth and charity. Certainly, as in every human judgement, an ecclesiastical superior can draw conclusions or take measures which sin either by excess or by defect. But this risk of error, from which no one is exempt, does not mean that one seeks to cover up, or on the contrary, to destroy a guilty party.

The Society of Saint Pius X assures the victims of its support and prayers for the reparation for the harm done to them. Furthermore, it prays for those who are unjustly accused, even when they are not members of the Society. Finally, she does not exclude from her prayers the guilty ones themselves, because she is convinced that Redemption is always possible for them – even if the media are not interested in it. For the Society is convinced that this corresponds to the spirit of the Catholic Church, our Mother, and to the teachings of Our Lord Jesus Christ, who warned us that the chaff would be mixed with the wheat until the end of time.

The Society entrusts itself to the Blessed Virgin Mary, that She may preserve us from all evil and that these trials may serve for the greater good of souls.
You call that a response?

Lies and deflections
https://www.churchmilitant.com/video/episode/vortex-you-call-that-a-response                             

Michael Voris, April 27, 2020 – Premium video not accessible

I have to tell you, for an outfit that presents itself as so superior — meaning holier— than actual Catholics in full communion with the Church, they sure can write public statements with the best of the corrupt Church of Nice.
Half-truths, ridiculous charges, skipping relevant damning information and claiming moral superiority — all of that and more is right there in the SSPX's oddball response to our Church Militant Spotlight report from last week.

Late Thursday afternoon, the breakaway Catholic group — and it is breakaway because it has its own bishops not under the jurisdiction of Rome — issued its statement, which, frankly, is laughable. It has all the intellectual weight of being composed by a bright high school student. Let's go into its various flaws, and we mean what they don't say, as much as what they do inaccurately say — and it's loads.

First, the very first sentence reveals the juvenile approach throughout: "On April 22, 2020, the website Church Militant published a story against the Society of Saint Pius X (SSPX) with the inflammatory title, 'SSPX—Sympathetic to Perverts.'"

The phrase in the title "Sympathetic to Perverts" was not our invention. It comes directly from a letter to then-superior general Bp. Bernard Fellay from an SSPX adherent, totally disgusted that a fellow SSPX parishioner who had sexually abused underage girls at the parish and done hard time was sitting in the Church for Mass as though nothing had happened — with young girls near him in the pews.

So if the SSPX thinks that highlighting the issue makes the Society look like it's "sympathetic to perverts" is inflammatory, they should take it up with the father of children who sat near a convicted, registered sex offender that no one in the congregation was informed of. You see where this is going? And we aren't past the first sentence yet.

Next, still in the opening paragraph, "This is false, and the SSPX calls on Church Militant to withdraw this slanderous piece of yellow journalism." First, no! We withdraw nothing. In fact, wait until you see what else we have coming out soon. Let's just say that your statement-writer dude is going to be pretty busy.

If it's slanderous, then sue us. But remember, you drop a suit on us and we get full discovery. But of course, that's why you issued a statement and not a lawsuit. You know that we know exactly the questions to ask and who has the information. That's why it took us four months cooperating with various law enforcement to produce this, which again, is just part one.

And the charge of yellow journalism should actually be applied to your statement. So here are some of the actual lies:

"As a primary and essential matter, the SSPX is committed to investigating all allegations of sexual misconduct by its clergy, religious and lay employees." That's a lie! Fr. Jurgen Wegner, a big player in the cover-up, freely admitted to one of the victims no investigation had ever been done in her case — a case where the priest in question had been moved to an out-of-state school, yes a school — a matter that comes up in the e-mail thread that SSPX leadership was stupid enough to accidentally include us on.

The very next sentence is also a blatant lie: "The Society also cooperates with all police or other official investigations into said misconduct when it violates the law, whether civil or ecclesiastical." As we said, that's a lie. Investigators tell Church Militant that the breakaway group dragged its feet for months in responding to a routine information subpoena that normally takes between one to two weeks to respond to.
Here's the next Lie: "Similarly, Church Militant implies, without evidence, that there are numerous investigations against SSPX clergy currently underway in the United States." In their self-incriminating e-mail string, the one they slipped up with, they admit themselves that there are multiple cases, so there's that. 

Here's the next Lie: "Church Militant repeatedly relies on hearsay, conjecture and factual misstatements to paint the SSPX in a false light." Public court documents, guilty verdicts, prison sentences, successful lawsuits and firsthand witness testimony hardly constitutes hearsay, conjecture and factual misstatements. Juries found them guilty, judges sentenced them, courts awarded payouts. Those are facts, not hearsay.

Likewise, when we asked SSPX directly for further information they referred us to their attorneys, who —shock — never addressed our questions. We asked specific questions about specific cases, revealing some of what we knew. If we were wrong, moving on hearsay, conjecture and incorrect facts, then why didn't they step up right then and correct the record? The answer to that is because they knew what the record was, and they knew that we knew what the record was. At that point, there was nothing to correct, only cover up.

That's what set off the flurry of e-mails amongst their leadership that, again, they were careless enough to unknowingly include us on. A sidebar for the SSPX leadership: If you're going to run a cover-up, the point is to keep it covered up, not include reporters on your secret, "crap, what the hell do we do now?" e-mails.

Skipping down in the official statement — it's actually hard to say this, it's so over the top ridiculous, not to mention absolutely reeks of cover-up and deflection — remember, SSPX themselves bring up their own e-mail snafu in their own public statement, and then completely deflect from the actual content and discussion, the matter at hand, which was about their fear that Church Militant would uncover the 'veritable gold mine' of abuse cases. They had the gall, as they strategized on how to cover up the cases and keep us in the dark, to point an accusing finger at us as being unethical.

Here's the relevant accusatory passage: "[Church Militant] exposed its own gross lack of ethics when it took private internal correspondence ..." We didn't take anything, you stupidly and carelessly gave it to us. Thanks again, Fr. Wegner, you need to take an e-mail tutorial.

We were saying to ourselves in the studio before we published, they are going to say we took the e-mails out of context. And boom, there it is: "out of context." No, they aren't out of context at all. 

Our original e-mail inquiry was about the priest Fr. Duverger, who had been transferred to a school. The internal back and forth says "We can admit there are some restrictions on him, but most people will still think it bizarre he's at a school." Then the discussion advances to admit there are many ugly cases in France, and that Church Militant is going to discover the "veritable gold mine" of cases here in the United States.

By the way fellas, we did discover them, and this is your pathetic response to being busted with your own e-mails?

And notice, in the statement, they don't deny that there are many ugly cases in France, nor do they deny the bit about there being a veritable "gold mine." They just say we're unethical for telling you about their private e-mail conversations. Whatever. 

They continue in their statement: "The [e-mail] discussion did not center on covering up any public wrongdoing but focused instead on how best to respond to Church Militant's inquiries." Yes, our inquiries about the cover-up. And how exactly do you cover up public wrongdoing? It's already public, so the point of covering it up would be?

Then there's this doozy regarding "the case of Fr. Frédéric Abbet in Belgium. What Church Militant fails to report is that the Society cooperated with the Belgian authorities and stands by the results of Fr. Abbet's trial."

Well, what the SSPX fails to tell you about the Fr. Abbet case, meaning how they twist it, is this: An internal SSPX tribunal cleared him of guilt years before the secular court trial when other sex abuse allegations were brought by distraught parents who discovered their child had been abused by the priest. The SSPX leadership asked the parents to not go public with their allegations. That is the definition of a cover-up.

When he reoffended with other children — meaning sexually assaulted them, which they always do — the civil courts convicted him. Only then did the SSPX cooperate, when they were forced to. But he should have been turned over to civil authorities years earlier instead of their little internal proceedings, which freed him and turned him loose on even more children.

Here's a whopper, buried near the bottom — an actual admission of guilt: "The SSPX does not deny that there have been serious and tragic individual cases of abuse committed by a discrete number of clergy and employees."

Did the United States Conference of Catholic Bishops (USCCB) write that? It sure sounds like it. What the hades is meant by a "discrete" number of clergy? How many? Where? When? Why don't you produce a list of names like every diocese in America has done? Or, are you too holy for that?

That your fanatical adherents are not demanding it of you, shows just how much you have them brainwashed. They care more about the Society than victims of the predators in your ranks — who are still in your ranks.

And the only reason you "do not deny" it is because we busted you and dragged it out into the light, that's why.

Hell, you even let a convicted child molester on the sex offender registry come right back into the parish after getting out of prison, and never told a soul about it — covering it up. He was a large donor to you, but you know, we're sure that didn't have anything to do with your silence.

As for the ridiculous, again USCCB-style excuse that these cases were decades ago, now that sounded kind of familiar to us:

[Transcript unavailable]

First, no they weren't. A half dozen we reported on were since the year 2000. And even if some of the abuse was decades ago, every single day, nothing is done about these predators. The cover-up starts over. The clock restarts. You get out of bed and the cover-up starts all over again. You live in a continual state of cover-up. 
Perhaps most striking in the statement, among many things NOT said, is the complete lack of remorse and failure to at least apologize to the victims. Twenty-six-year-old Michael Gonzalez blew his brains out because this priest, who's now living the good life stashed away in Italy, sodomized him when he was 14. There's not a single expression of regret for his case. 

These losers and abusers saw our report. They saw our on-camera interview in which his sister Theresa tells about his destroyed life and eventual suicide. But not one blessed word — no apology, no regret, no asking for forgiveness, nothing. Just the corporate "we do not deny" there have been cases. Well, bully for you.

And to round out their lame response, they once again took a page from the U.S. bishops' playbook: "It is well-known that Church Militant is not a serious journalistic enterprise." Apparently, we're well known enough to be the most commented-on Catholic website in the world, with our content being viewed millions of times a month and our video reporting now being imitated by multiple other Catholic sites.

But the part about us not being serious journalists, understand this: We are as serious as a heart attack. Every single bit of information we have uncovered — and there's more to be made public — has been turned over to law enforcement, like you should have done.
There are various lay people involved in all this. One or more probably wrote this laughable response. Presumably, you guys have families and you are the breadwinners. You know from the inside how all this filth was handled.  If you don't think, when the hammer drops with criminal indictments and civil lawsuits, those crooked cover-up priests won't either fire you, or throw you under the bus, you're crazier than your stupid statement.

Wives, you better start agonizing because your husbands are involved in a massive cover-up, and they, meaning you and your children, are going to pay the price. The society will close ranks and deliver your husbands up to the gallows. You husbands and fathers involved in this better come to your senses quickly and turn state's evidence now when you still have the chance, before your families are torn apart.

Anyone who has further information is urged to call the Kansas Bureau of Investigation. They have a special hotline set up for this specific case.

That's your tip right there, that this is not going to end well for the SSPX. Investigators don't set up hotlines for individual investigations unless they anticipate or are already receiving loads of information.

Not looking good at all

Not at all
https://www.churchmilitant.com/video/episode/vortex-not-looking-good-at-all                            

April 30, 2020 – Premium video not accessible
Church Militant's recent Spotlight report about the Catholic breakaway group, the Society of St. Pius X (SSPX) — exposing international cover-up of sex abuse reaching to the highest levels — has not only ignited a fierce backlash by some Society followers, but it has also brought to light many more interesting details, none of them good for the Society.

As an aside, we offer this journalist note here, if we may: When cover-ups or other sordid institutional behavior is going on, it's never a good idea for the institution to circle the wagons, especially if it's well-established, ongoing behavior. The reason? Because inevitably, many people know about some aspect of the corruption, and the only impetus they need to start talking is press coverage.

That creates a "tell-all" environment where lots of people start "spilling the beans," whereas before they were more inclined to keep mum, feeling as though they might be the only one, and not wanting to suffer the inevitable attacks that come. But once the dam breaks, it breaks.

In the form of an update now, not only has Church Militant been collecting fresh information on abuse cases and cover-up, all of which we are vetting, and there's a lot, but what appears to be another unsavory practice by Society leadership is coming to the light.
We'd like you to listen to this recording left for us by an SSPX follower. The individual identified himself on the call as well as his location, but we edited out that info for his privacy.

I'm calling to thank you for the Spotlight exposé on the Society of St. Pius X. I am a long time member. My wife was told to divorce me. And this all came after I had decided there were some problems and was going to take our children out of the school. They tried to get rid of me. They used and abused the office of a bishop, who then concocted some kind of fraudulent sentence against me. But when my wife saw Christine Niles' story that came out in the last couple days, I think there's hope now. She may question this whole thing and our marriage can be reconciled. So I want to thank ... (crying) Mr. Voris ... and ... excuse me ... and Ms. Niles. We thank you for what you've done, and helping us. Thank you so much. It says in Scripture, "Have nothing to do with the fruitless deeds of darkness but expose them." So, thank you (crying) ... thank you very much.

We also contacted him ahead of time and asked if he would give his permission for us to air it. He happily did so. 

Since our original Spotlight, we have received multiple calls from various locations revealing yet another disturbing pattern: When a layman tries to depart the SSPX, a measure of shame is applied to him, often trying to convince the wife to divorce her husband and take the children. For example, they're targeted with public humiliation from the pulpit — called out by name and embarrassed and ostracized from the community. 
In fact, a number of former SSPX priests have contacted us as well, who grew increasingly uncomfortable with the tactics and the behind-the-scenes operations of breaking up families, public shaming and so forth, and decided they wanted nothing to do with this, so they left.

One of them told us, in fact, that a closely-held data point within the Society is the actual number of priests who, ordained for the Society, eventually left to exercise their priesthood elsewhere, unwilling to continue participating in what they increasingly came to view as a "cult" — that's what they told us, and that's from former priests.

According to sources we have spoken with, the attrition rate has been pegged at about a third. If that’s true, or remotely true, it's a staggering percentage given the particulars of the Society's claims to hyper-orthodoxy.

Additionally, other current members, some of whom have been developing a case of the heebie-jeebies about things they know, have also contacted us. Here's another caller, again, permission granted and identity redacted:
Oh, again, I were excited in that horrible way, to hear the stories the last couple days about St. Mary's, Kansas. And I just want to say, they may not take you as a serious journalist enterprise, but we do. And, we're glad that someone's out there fighting. I wish we were in a position to be able to help in a better way. I think we're ... we just wanted to say we'll continue to pray for you and send a few bucks when we can, but just wanted to say thank you for uncovering so much of this and fighting.

Something weird is going on. In fact, it seems a lot of weird is going on. 

One priest even contacted us to share with us a video of the original illicit consecrations in 1988 which got Society founder Abp. Marcel Lefebvre and the four bishops excommunicated. Allow us to share relevant parts of his e-mail with you, along with the video he sent us. Here's his e-mail.

[This video clip shows] the lie that they "have an apostolic mandate."  

In the rubrics, the rite of episcopal consecration, the assistant priest presents the priests to be consecrated as bishops, and the principal consecrator [Lefebvre] is directed in the rubrics to ask of the assistant priest, "Do you have an apostolic mandate?" (Habetis mandatum apostolicum? - always understood to be a written papal order to conduct the consecrations).  

That question is posed by Abp. Lefebvre at minute 8:28. At minute 8:30 in the video, Fr. Schmittberger clearly responds saying, "Habemus" ('We have one'), thereby lying within the liturgy itself.  

That this apostolic mandate is to be a written document from the reigning pontiff is clear from the next words, and from the rubrics themselves, for the principal consecrator is then supposed to say: "Legatur" ('Let it be read'). 

The archbishop did say "Legatur," but of course, there was no papal mandate to be read.  

The rubrics instruct that the mandate from the pope be read at this point, which of course they skipped.

Quite a butchering of the traditional rite of consecration from folks that pride themselves on liturgical perfection.

That again is from one of the priests. In the fallout from our Spotlight exposé, the Society took to its Facebook page to admit it: "has received a voluminous number of e-mails, phone calls and social media posts regarding its commitment to transparency, including additional information regarding allegations of abuse."

Did you catch that? One more time, they said, "including additional information regarding allegations of abuse," just like Church Militant has been receiving them all this week. And yes, we've received a bunch as well, like we keep saying. 

So if the SSPX groupies don't believe us on this point, we'd say, believe the Society which itself is saying it has voluminous contacts, new allegations ... stay tuned.

Likewise in that same Facebook posting, they try to backpedal from an earlier statement posted by one of their priories, a statement that was manifestly false.

The Society Facebook page says "The U.S. District wishes to stress in no uncertain terms that the only official statements regarding sexual abuse and impropriety emanate directly from the U.S. District on its official website. Any statements originating from individual priests, chapels or priories are not the official position of the SSPX ..."

That's called covering your butt legally. That uncomfortable posting came about because the chapel and school where Fr. Pierre Duvager is assigned in Florida had posted its own notice defending the accused priest, saying in essence, pay no attention to Church Militant's report. Our priest is squeaky clean. Not so much — multiple allegations, in fact, have been lodged against him and he is under investigation by law enforcement. 

Coincidentally, just before the official Society Facebook page posted its notification saying only what it says is official, the Florida post from St. Thomas More saying Fr. Duvager is innocent suddenly went "poof" — all gone. And that's because headquarters back in Kansas knows for a fact that he is under investigation, as revealed in their own e-mails. Somebody in Kansas clearly got on the horn with someone in Florida and said, "Take that down immediately, we're already in enough trouble."

And so it goes — a culture of lies, obfuscation, cover-up, the cat getting out of the bag on all of it. As the Society can tell from its own phone lines and e-mails, none of this is going away. People have been lied to, fired, abused — it all covered up — their marriages targeted because of some weirdo cult mentality.

There is one and only one correct thing to do here: Come totally clean and own up to everything. Reveal the names of all the abusive priests. End the practice of trying to break up marriages of those who catch on to the Scientology-type tactics and want out. Reveal the names of anyone, including bishops illicitly consecrated, who have participated in this by defending and shifting around abusive clergy.

Criminal investigations are increasing now. The word is out and people are coming forward, spilling the beans about what they know, and it's a lot.
If the Society thinks for one minute that months or years of stonewalling and dragging its feet and all the stuff that proved fruitless in the Novus Ordo Church is going to work for them, well they should keep two numbers in their minds, 20 and 4 billion. Twenty is the number of dioceses that have gone bankrupt in the United States and $4 billion is the payout amount for various sex abuse claims. And those aren't final numbers.

Regardless of what SSPX devotees think of Church Militant, the only question that matters is this: Is our reporting true? Yes or no? Nothing else matters. Those inside the Society, as well as various laymen in social media offering a million excuses and attacking our motives, has nothing to do with that central question. Are the reports true? 

For a group of loyal Catholics, that should be the only thing anyone is concerned about and, if something else is at play, then you're no better than the rotten-to-the-core Church of Nice that did the same thing for decades.

You have a chance to right your ship, at least in this area. But the window is closing very fast.

SSPX bishops ordained known gay predator
Lefebvre: ‘Watch him like a hawk’
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/sspx-protected-ordained-gay-predator 
Christine Niles, May 7, 2020. Several images omitted
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Fr. Carlos Urrutigoity
A predator priest, who became infamous in the United States for homosexual grooming and abuse, got his start in the Society of St. Pius X, which accepted him, trained him, ordained him and gave him a teaching position — in spite of knowledge of his homosexual predation.
The protection and promotion of a young Carlos Urrutigoity involved no fewer than three SSPX bishops — Alfonso de Galarreta, Richard Williamson and Marcel Lefebvre — while the whistleblower who reported on his predation was expelled from the Society.

The circumstances lead one to question the involvement of Lefebvre — founder of the Society — in this affair, as he had complete knowledge of Urrutigoity's predation in the seminary, but gave the green light for him to be ordained a priest of the SSPX.

"Carlos Urrutigoity has been formally accused of homosexual molestation in three different places, yet each time he has managed to evade justice by enlisting episcopal support, "wrote Dr. Jeffrey Bond, who once taught for the Society of St. John but left after learning about the true character of the priest he once trusted.

SSPX Seminary in La Reja, Argentina

Urrutigoity came to the SSPX Seminary of Our Lady, Co-Redemptrix in La Reja, Argentina in the 1980s. Father Andres Morello, rector from 1981–1988, oversaw the student during his entire tenure there, eventually wanting to expel him after learning of numerous acts of homosexual grooming and predation with fellow seminarians.

The rector, however, was blocked by Argentina's district superior, Bp. Alfonso de Galarreta, who, knowing of the charges of homosexual predation, disregarded them and instead transferred him to the priory in Cordoba.

But even there, Urrutigoity caused problems, where he evidenced troubling behavior — which de Galarreta again overlooked, instead allowing the homosexual predator to "rehabilitate" his image and receive a recommendation to study at the SSPX seminary in Winona, Minnesota.

On learning that Urrutigoity desired to enter the Winona seminary, Morello flew to the United States to denounce him in person.
"His imminent ordination to the major orders obliged me in conscience to write a confidential report to the rector of Winona's seminary, Bishop Williamson, in order to stop the ordination," Morello wrote. "Bishop Williamson made it known to the then-seminarian Urrutigoity so that he could defend himself from our accusations."
"On July 1989 we traveled to Winona, and Bishop Williamson read to us the defense of Father Urrutigoity, defended his 'humility' and accused us of lying," Morello explained. "A few days later, on July 16, 1989, I was expelled from the Society."

Urrutigoity would go on to be ordained a priest, even teaching at the Winona seminary, under the protection of Bp. Richard Williamson.

"[It's] indisputable that, from the early days of SSPX, there was an atmosphere of complacency toward the vice of homosexuality within the two mentioned seminaries of the organization," wrote author Patrick Odou.
Dossier Sent to Abp. Lefebvre

Urrutigoity's misconduct was documented in a dossier signed by priests and seminarians from La Reja and sent to Abp. Marcel Lefebvre, as part of Morello's request to launch a canonical investigation into Urrutigoity and certain SSPX clergy:

During his stay in the seminary of La Reja, this seminarian was denounced by a young layman who lives in the seminary, for the following reasons which became most serious as the time passed. Frequently the seminarian brought up in conversation the subject of chastity. He asked him if he had temptations and what did he do in such cases. Also he asked him whether he was a virgin, or if he performed dishonest acts alone or with women.

In a particular conversation he asked him if he went to the movies, and if the films excited him provoking temptations. The lad answered yes, and Urrutigoity asked if this prompted him to search for women, to which the young man replied again yes. Then the seminarian asked if he would consider making the dishonest act with a man. The lad said no.

The dossier notes that Urrutigoity would visit the seminarian at night, in his most vulnerable state, in order to take advantage of him:

The same witness denounced as well the seminarian for entering his room without knocking previously. One night at about 3:00 AM he woke up and found him inside the room uncovering him. The excuse that Urrutigoity gave next day was that he had entered the room in order to cover him. Before this situation the lad went to Father Canale, a priest whom he trusted. He laughed and said to him: "The only thing I can tell you is to lock the door." Father Canale was therefore fully aware of the situation and he never talked about it with the superior of the house.

The witness says also that on one occasion the seminarian entered into his room and, finding him in bed, told him that he had a fever. The lad replied that he was feeling well, but Urrutigoity insisted that he had a fever and that in order to confirm it he was going to fondle his genitals to see if they were inflamed, and he did it.

One day Carlos Urrutigoity gave him underwear, insisted that he should get naked and try it on before him to see if it fit. He proposed that he take measurements every week of his physical development, naked and with his back towards the wall, which the young man refused to do.

He gave him a shot and insisted on massaging his buttocks, which he did.

Global Post reporter confronting Fr. Urrutigoity in Argentina in 2018. [NOT DISPLAYING]
The dossier concludes by making clear other acts of homosexual predation took place but were not included in the report:

We finish here the testimony of the young man, and we wish to make it clear that these are not all the incidents, just those which we consider more relevant.

A seminarian declares that being in the restroom he touched him in his private parts, and that often he told him things about the private parts, among others that "he adored his buttocks" (the seminarian had not yet received the soutane). He said: "I adore your little round butt" (and made a gesture with his hands).

Another seminarian tells us that he asked him about the sexual life of his past and about his present temptations.

After Morello reported this misconduct to Bp. de Galarreta and asked that Urrutigoity be expelled, instead, the bishop transferred the seminarian to the priory in Cordoba, 400 miles away. There, the bishop — with full knowledge of Urrutigoity's track record — allowed him to host an all-male summer camp:
Two traditional young laymen declare that during a summer camp organized by Carlos Urrutigoity — with the inexplicable authorization of Bishop de Galarreta, who knew about the situation, and while the seminarian was in the priory of Cordoba under observation because of his disciplinary problems — he went to the river with a group of young men. There he removed his clothes before the others and remained in underwear. One of the youngsters offered immediately a swimming suit which Urrutigoity rejected, and in such attire he bathed in the river.

De Galarreta did not expel him because of the problems this could cause, especially with the Calderon family.

Overlooking this conduct, de Galarreta allowed Urrutigoity to "rehabilitate" his image in Cordoba, where he received his needed recommendation to enter the seminary in Winona, Minnesota — where he would go on to sexually abuse again, this time under the watch of Bp. Richard Williamson.
Urrutigoity in the US

Instead of believing Morello's testimony, Williamson chalked it up to rival factions in La Reja. Morello supported sedevacantism, while de Galarreta opposed this position. Urrutigoity took advantage of the civil war by claiming Morello was "persecuting" him for opposing his sedevacantist views and that the charges of homosexual misconduct were "trumped up."

Thus Williamson championed Urrutigoity's cause, managing to convince Abp. Marcel Lefebvre to admit him to the U.S. seminary in spite of his misgivings.

"Bishop Williamson then presented Archbishop Lefebvre himself with Urrutigoity's written defense," Bond explained. "According to Bishop Williamson, Archbishop Lefebvre, after reading Urrutigoity's defense, told Bishop Williamson to admit Urrutigoity to the seminary, but to 'watch him like a hawk.'"
Lefebvre agreed to let Urrutigoity into the seminary despite the detailed dossier from Morello, a dossier that concluded with this plea:

We ask your forgiveness, Father, for writing about these unpleasant issues, but we consider it necessary since nobody has heard our complaints. What worries us right now is that (a) the superiors know about this situation. Not only was the seminarian not expelled, but the solution to his moral and disciplinary problems is simply to send him to another seminary; (b) Carlos Urrutigoity is about to receive major orders in Winona, USA; (c) a serious investigation was never started.

We are worried and scandalized by all this. We have tried by all means to inchoate an investigation to no avail. Bishop de Galarreta made it impossible to take measures against him, and despite the fact that he now acknowledges his mistake, he still does nothing to repair it.

Too late did Galarreta, Williamson and Lefebvre come to realize Morello had been right all along.

"Note also that even those who initially found themselves on opposite sides, such as Bishop Williamson and Fr. Morello, are now all agreed on at least one thing: Carlos Urrutigoity is a homosexual predator," Bond wrote.

As noted above, Morello — the whistleblower on Urrutigoity's homosexual predation — was expelled from the Society only days after he gave his testimony against Urrutigoity in Winona in 1989.

As author Odou asked, "Did Bishop Williamson have enough power to expel Fr. Morello — the rector of an important seminary — from the SSPX? Or did he consult Arch. Lefebvre? It seems normal that in such an important issue, the SSPX supreme leader should have the last word."
"Then, if the answer to this question is positive, we would come to the unpleasant conclusion that Msgr. Lefebvre himself protected — radically protected and promoted — the homosexual Urrutigoity in order to make him a priest and expelled Fr. Morello, who correctly demanded sanctions be taken against him," Odou wrote.

Ten years later — after Urrutigoity had already been expelled from the SSPX for "subversive" activities (he was discovered secretly forming the Society of St. John) — Williamson accompanied a young SSPX seminarian to Scranton, Pennsylvania, where he testified before the bishop that Urrutigoity had sexually abused him.

"This young seminarian, with whom Fr. Urrutigoity had had a very close particular friendship at Winona, had been under Fr. Urrutigoity's spiritual direction for two years before Fr. Urrutigoity molested him," Williamson explained to Bond.

Incidentally, it was Bp. Bernard Fellay who had put Bp. James Timlin of Scranton on notice of Urrutigoity's conduct, on learning he was seeking a new home in Timlin's diocese.
Predator Priest Serves in Argentina

Urrutigoity's later maneuvers are well known. Timlin kicked Urrutigoity out of Scranton and his successor, Bp. Joseph Martino, suppressed the Society of St. John, after evidence that Urrutigoity was grooming and abusing boys while temporarily staying at St. Gregory's Academy, run by the Priestly Fraternity of St. Peter.
The priest afterwards found refuge in the diocese of Ciudad del Este, under Bp. Rogelio Livieres Plano. The bishop made Urrutigoity his second-in-command and allowed the Society of St. John to be reconstituted.

When news of the predator's presence reached Catholics in Paraguay, the backlash was intense, eventually leading to Plano and Urrutigoity's removal from their posts by Pope Francis in 2014.

He was named as an accused predator on pages 880–82 of the 2018 Pennsylvania grand jury report, which include allegations that he "had made it a practice to sleep in the same bed with boys and young men." A victim's father later brought allegations of sex abuse against Urrutigoity, who was investigated by the district attorney but could not be prosecuted because the statute of limitations had passed. A civil lawsuit resulted in paying the alleged victim $380,000.

After Paraguay, Urrutigoity returned to Argentina, where he continues to offer Mass and serve as a priest to this day.

Morello went on to found the sedevacantist Company of Jesus and Mary, an association that strives to live out the ideal of St. Ignatius of Loyola, founder of the Company of Jesus (Jesuits).

Williamson eventually broke from the SSPX to form the Resistance, welcoming other dissatisfied SSPX clergy (including a number of sexual predators).

De Galarreta was promoted to the prestigious role of first assistant to the superior general, a post he holds to this day.

"I went from being a kid who thought about becoming a priest to being a kid who lost his faith," said one of Urrutigoity's victims in 2018. "I've probably been to Mass twice since 2000, and each time it was for a funeral."

As is the story with a number of other sexual predators who first found their start in the SSPX, going on to leave a trail of devastation in their wake, Society leadership at the highest levels repeatedly turned a blind eye to Urrutigoity's offenses, giving him opportunities to offend again and again. How different the story would have been for the young men's lives harmed by his abuse had SSPX bishops taken seriously the allegations of homosexual predation more than three decades ago.
Instead, three SSPX bishops were complicit, in varying degrees, in protecting and promoting a homosexual predator, while punishing the priest who tried to expose him.

While media coverage has largely focused the blame on Bp. Timlin for ignoring Urrutigoity's misconduct, the lion's share of responsibility lies at the feet of the SSPX, without whose aid and protection the predator never would have gotten a start.

SSPX cone of silence
Refusing to answer questions

https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/sspx-cone-of-silence 
Christine Niles, May 11, 2020
The Society of St. Pius X is refusing to answer questions about its complicity in sex abuse.
In a statement issued two weeks ago (but since taken down), the SSPX promised "transparency" in the face of documented cases of abuse and cover-up reported in Church Militant's April 22 Spotlight investigation [SEE IN 23 JANUARY 2021 FILE, ON PAGE 9].

Contrary to this promise, the SSPX has offered only silence in the face of multiple media queries.

On April 30, Church Militant wrote to Bp. Bernard Fellay, superior general of the SSPX for 24 years (1994–2018), who presided over a number of the abuse cases highlighted in our exposé.

Church Militant asked him questions specifically regarding the case of SSPX priest Fr. Frédéric Abbet, a convicted pedophile sentenced by a Belgian court to five years in prison for abusing boys at an SSPX academy in Brussels.

Abbet never would have been able to abuse boys in Brussels had Fellay not assigned him to live under the same roof as boys at L'École de Notre Dame — in spite of Fellay's knowledge of prior abuse allegations in Valais, Switzerland.

In fact, an SSPX tribunal in 2006 imposed a 10-year ban on Abbet from being around children unsupervised — a ban almost immediately violated by Fellay, who announced Abbet's transfer to the Brussels priory of Christ the King — under the same roof as the boys dorms — only two months after this ban was issued.

Church Militant obtained a copy of the letter detailing Abbet's restrictions in 2006, which reads in part:

Nevertheless, by prudence and given that a suspicion of crime remains, the judge felt it necessary to restrict the future ministry of Fr. Frédéric Abbet with the following measures, issued by decree on June 6, 2006 and communicated to the interested party on July 27, 2006.

Among the restrictions was a 10-year ban on internet usage — which Fellay lifted — as well as a 10-year ban on being around children unsupervised — which Fellay also violated within two months.

Fellay has stayed at the same priory multiple times, so he was well aware that any priest there has direct and easy access to the boys dorms, day or night. It would have been an impossible task to supervise his movements.

The second page of the letter (shown below) notes that Fellay — without explanation — lifted the ban on Abbet's use of the internet.

It also says of the restrictions: "These measures were communicated to the interested party as well as to his superiors, Fr. [Jurgen] Wegner [former district superior of the BeNeLux region] then [Fr. Benoît] Wailliez. I myself sent on Jan. 21, 2009 to Fr. Benoît Wailliez, his superior, the written list of these measures, and I had the occasion of telling them to him on July 1, 2010."

In spite of knowing about the restrictions and about Abbet's track record in Switzerland, neither Wegner nor Wailliez supervised Abbet. As the victim's family told Church Militant, both men should have been troubled to know that Abbet was being transferred to their priory. They should have voiced their concerns and refused the assignment, for the safety and welfare of the children in their charge. Neither did so, nor did they exercise adequate supervision over Abbet (an impossible task, as already noted).
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Letter from Fr. Christian Thouvenot, secretary general, detailing 2006 restrictions on Fr. Frédéric Abbet
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Page 2 of the letter from Secretary General Fr. Christian Thouvenot making clear the restrictions on Fr. Abbet were communicated to Fr. Jurgen Wegner and Fr. Benoit Wailliez
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Fr. Benoît Wailliez, former prior of Brussels chapel/Fr. Jurgen Wegner, former district superior of BeNeLux region, now district superior in US

Church Militant asked Fellay several pointed questions, including:

(Why did you ignore the ban imposed on Fr. Frédéric Abbet not to be around children for 10 years, and immediately assign him to the Brussels priory, where he would live under the same roof as boys — whom he went on to abuse?

(Do you take responsibility for your part in endangering children in this matter?

(Have you ever issued an apology to the victims and their families devastated by the abuse Abbet perpetrated on them?

(Did you discipline either Fr. [Jurgen] Wegner for failure to supervise Fr. Abbet, as you ordered him to do, or Fr. [Benoît Wailliez] for placing a man he suspected of being a sexual predator in charge of the boys' dorm, as well as withholding incriminating evidence against Fr. Abbet for six years?

(Where is Fr. Abbet now?

Fellay never responded.

Ten days later, Church Militant sent a follow-up email asking further questions:

Bishop Fellay,

It is now 10 days since I've written you and still have yet to receive a response. Is this the sort of "transparency" the public can expect from the SSPX?

I've learned from speaking with the victims' families that Fr. Abbet roams free in Switzerland and appears never to have served his time in prison.

I understand the SSPX has since expelled Fr. Abbet from the Society.

Will the Society help the [victim's] family locate the current whereabouts of Fr. Abbet? As you are in Switzerland and have many connections, surely you can easily track him down and perform this act of aid to the victims.

Critics say you are above all most culpable in the abuse of these young victims, because it is you who violated the ban by placing Fr. Abbet in a priory with direct access to boys, knowing very well it would be impossible to supervise his every move.

Are you willing to admit responsibility, issue a public apology to the victims and resign for what some say is your criminal negligence?

Does it trouble your conscience that boys were harmed by Fr. Philippe Peignot, whose ban you also lifted and whom you allowed to be around boys and lead scout camps?
Why did you transfer Fr. Pierre Duverger to the United States after his sex scandal in France involving another woman?

Why did you fail to notify the police as soon as you learned of the rapes committed by Fr. Christophe Roisnel? Failure to report is a violation of French law, as you well know.

Will the SSPX publish a list of all credibly accused clergy, current or past, in an act of transparency?

We know of many other priests involved in sex scandals whom you transferred to another assignment. Do you think it's correct to be transferring and reassigning accused sexual predators to new locations, where they often go on to abuse again? Is this the accepted modus operandi of the SSPX?

Church Militant awaits answers to these questions.
SSPX priest to Bp. Fellay: Stop blaming victims
Fellay dismissed concerns, blamed victims
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/sspx-clericalism-and-cover-up 
Christine Niles, May 13, 2020

Bishop Bernard Fellay dismissed a heartfelt plea from a priest asking him to stop protecting predators.

In a 2016 letter written by a priest of the Society of St. Pius X (SSPX), he beseeches Fellay, then-superior general, to come clean about the Society's involvement with Fr. Frédéric Abbet, SSPX, convicted by a Belgian court of child sex crimes and sentenced to five years in prison.
"I know the reputation of the Society is at stake and that the condemnation of one of its former members will be negative for it," wrote the priest, "but it would be much more harmful in the long term to learn that authorities in the Society have all attempted to exonerate a former member, to the detriment of the justice due to the victims."

As Church Militant has reported, Abbet was only able to abuse boys at the Brussels SSPX academy L'École de Notre Dame because Fellay — in direct violation of a 10-year ban on Abbet being around children unsupervised — assigned the pedophile to live under the same roof as young boys at the academy. Abbet would go on to abuse three of them, one victim as young as six.

Fellay has never acknowledged his responsibility, nor has he apologized to the victims and their families for his role contributing to their sons' abuse.
Father Jurgen Wegner and Fr. Benoît Wailliez, both former priors at the Brussels chapel assigned to supervise Abbet, were also guilty, as they were both made aware of Abbet's past abuse allegations in Switzerland and failed to exercise oversight over the priest, granting him free and easy access to children.

In a letter Church Militant published, Secretary General Christian Thouvenot made clear he had communicated the restrictions on Abbet both to Wegner and to Wailliez, neither of whom appeared to have taken them seriously.

The criminal negligence of no fewer than three SSPX clergy so shocked the prosecutor that he shouted in court that it should have been the Society put on trial instead of just Abbet.

Their criminal negligence also led the panel of judges to accuse the SSPX of "criminogenic" behavior — a French term denoting the promotion of repeated criminality.

Three European victims' advocacy groups also published a joint statement condemning the Society's deception and obstruction of justice during trial, and their refusal to help the victims.

"The latter are the ones who must receive our aid and our assistance," the priest wrote in his 2016 letter to Fellay. "It is for them that one must fight, that one must uncover all facts and proofs that can help them."

[image: image10.png]



"No victims have sullied the Society; quite the opposite with regard to the predators," he added.

"Look at all the scandals that have shaken the Church a little everywhere in the world for some years," he continues. "Bishops have been condemned for covering up these horrors. Spare the Society from suffering this shame."

He closes the letter with a warning and a final plea.

"The [victim's] family will not stop there; they have a thirst for justice and their distress is such that they will continue to fight, and if the courts are closed to them, they will turn to the press," he wrote. "The Society will be tarnished," going on to say, "Little by little my trust is eroding; you can rebuild it."

Fellay's response was a polite "Mind your own business."
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"Don't involve yourself in this matter, but leave it to the superiors, who have the graces of office to handle it as they must," wrote Fellay.
After this display of clericalism, he concluded the curt missive by claiming that victims are to blame for besmirching the good name of the SSPX: "Unfortunately you're wrong when you say that no victims have sullied the Society."

While the Belgian court sentenced Abbet to five years in prison, the priest has yet to serve a day behind bars, fleeing to Switzerland, where locals claim he is staying with his parents, and has even been spotted taking his nephews to the local swimming pool.

The SSPX informed the victim's family that Abbet has been expelled from the Society, but Fellay will not answer questions as to his whereabouts, nor will he offer help in locating Abbet in order to bring him to justice, in spite of the fact that Fellay's connections could easily locate the pederast — who continues to roam free, with easy access to children.

The priest who wrote Fellay eventually left the SSPX.

Read this article in French (Lisez cet article en français)
SSPX and infiltration of sex abusers
How far-right homosexuals crept into the Society
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/sspx-and-sex-abuse 
Dr. John Lamont, May 16, 2020

Stories of sexual abuse and the protection of sexual abusers by the Society of St. Pius (SSPX) [SEE IN 23 JANUARY 2021 FILE, ON PAGE 15],have recently been given a certain amount of publicity due to the hard journalistic work of Church Militant's Christine Niles. The episodes that have come to light are horrifying and are documented by unimpeachable evidence [SEE IN 23 JANUARY 2021 FILE, ON PAGE 6] — court judgments, credible eye-witness accounts and the statements and documents [SEE PAGE 4], of the SSPX leadership. They demand explanation, and it may be helpful for a person like myself, who has some knowledge of the history of the SSPX and some familiarity with SSPX milieux, to attempt such an explanation.
I will state at the outset that I agree in substance with the doctrinal and liturgical positions of Abp. Marcel Lefebvre, I think that he was correct to found the SSPX in order to carry on these positions; I think he was correct to persist with the SSPX when Rome tried to suppress it; and I think he was correct to consecrate bishops in defiance of the Holy See in order to carry on his religious society.*

Indeed I have publicly defended the theological positions of the SSPX in the past; I have been a regular attendee at SSPX Masses; and two of my daughters were baptized at SSPX chapels. I make these statements about Abp. Lefebvre in order to rule out any claims that my position on sexual abuse in the SSPX is motivated by theological animus against the Society. The question of their truth or falsity is quite independent of the question of the nature, extent and causes of sexual abuse in the SSPX, so I will not pursue them further.

Cover-Up Culture

The facts documented and in some cases uncovered by Church Militant have shown that in the SSPX there is a culture of covering up sexual abuse, protecting sexual abusers from the law and providing sexual abusers with opportunity for further abuse. This is both a culture and what amounts to an official policy of the clerical leadership, although I do not suppose that the policy is written down anywhere. The statements [SEE IN 23 JANUARY 2021 FILE, ON PAGE 6], made by the American district of the SSPX in response to the Church Militant stories have confirmed this to any informed and reflective observer.

Consider its most recent statement [SEE PAGE 8]. This is arrogant and dishonest, and fails to address any specific charges. The following paragraph, in particular, is a straightforward lie:
The Society deeply regrets that some of its members may have engaged in serious misconduct and, in the worst cases, criminal or delinquent behavior. It is a blemish on the Catholic priesthood, on the Church and on the work of Abp. Marcel Lefebvre. However, that does not mean that the Society encourages them, that it protects them, or, even less, that it covers for them. On the contrary, it strives each time, according to the seriousness of the cases, to sanction them and to deal with them, according to the rules of justice, having first of all concern for the victims.

The activities of the SSPX in protecting and covering for pedophiles in its midst are clearly documented in legal proceedings.

The case of Fr. Frédéric Abbet in Belgium is an example. Here the SSPX obstructed efforts of victims to find out about Fr. Abbet's crimes. After learning that he had molested boys, Bp. Fellay assigned Fr. Abbet to a residence next to a boy's school where he committed further crimes. Bishop Fellay did this despite the order of an internal SSPX tribunal that ruled that Fr. Abbet should have no contact with children for at least a decade. He even overrode the tribunal's very sensible ruling that Fr. Abbet should not be allowed access to the internet, thus showing that he had gone into the case in detail and intended to remove every hindrance to Fr. Abbet's committing further crimes.
The SSPX statement is intended to rally the supporters of the Society to deny the truth about the SSPX and sexual abuse and to intimidate victims who are thinking of coming forward with their stories. It shows that the decision of the Society is to try to face down their accusers in order to continue with their policy towards sexual abuse. This response is made all the more striking by the fact that the statement replaces an earlier, much more reasonable-sounding one that was put up and then taken down. It is likely that the earlier statement was the work of the Society's competent PR man, James Vogel, and that its replacement comes from the clerical leadership.

External observers will find this puzzling. Aside from the iniquity of this strategy, its hatefulness in the eyes of the Lord Whom the Society is supposed to serve, and the severe divine vengeance that it will bring down upon its perpetrators, it is clearly too late for it to work. There are too many victims coming forward, too many police investigations and too much publicity.
There is a stage in all these kinds of scandals where it is too late to cover things up and put the toothpaste back in the tube, and this stage has now been reached with the SSPX. Why is the SSPX pursuing this strategy, and why did it adopt this policy towards sexual abuse in the first place? These are the questions that this essay is intended to answer.

Isolated From Reality

One explanation might be the following. The leadership of the SSPX lives in a somewhat isolated environment that it has previously been able to entirely dominate. This domination creates arrogance among the leadership, and means that they can often dispense with real ability. It also circumscribes their conception of reality, making them think that the whole world is like the artificial environment that they have created and that they are able to control. So part of the explanation for the current state of affairs in the Society is that the leadership are arrogant mediocrities who are not capable enough to react to a new and difficult situation or even to really grasp the situation that they are in, and who are just falling back under stress to the strategies they have always used before.

There is probably some truth in this explanation. But things have now gone too far for it to fully explain the Society's stance. Once police investigations and criminal charges begin, delusion and incompetence usually have to give way. What we see now is a deliberate defiance of attempts to oppose the SSPX's favorable policy towards sexual abuse. Why is this happening?

The first step in explaining the Society's actions is a proper characterization of their underlying motives and goals. The actions of the leadership of the Society and of many of their followers show that they have internalized the psychology and dispositions of a sexual abuser.

As a general characterization, sexual abusers are not just people with a lamentable weakness of the flesh that they fail to control. They are serious criminals, and they have the mentality and behavioral patterns of a criminal. These include total absence of empathy for their victims and a capacity to lie without the slightest guilt or hesitation. There are also characteristics that belong to sexual abusers in particular. They not only victimize people, they hate and despise their victims. If this were not so, they would not get pleasure from damaging and tormenting them. They hate them because they hurt them, rather than vice versa.
What is more, they think that anyone who objects to, interferes with or condemns their abuse is doing them a monstrous injustice. If this happens, they consider themselves to be ill-treated, and to be entitled to vengeance against the objectors and compensation from the world in general.

Shuffling Predator Priests

This conception of things can be seen to govern the way that the SSPX has dealt with sexual abusers in its ranks. Consider the example of Bp. Fellay and Fr. Abbet. One can understand why the SSPX from a selfish point of view might have discouraged the victims of his abuse and tried to silence the whole affair. This would avoid scandal and possible financial losses for the Society. But why then move Fr. Abbet to a post where it was certain that he would commit more offenses? Why remove every restriction that might hinder his committing further abuse? Would this not risk causing further scandal, as in fact, it did? Why overrule the SSPX's own tribunal to make this seemingly counterproductive move?
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Fr. Philippe Peignot

Similar questions are raised by the case of Fr. Philippe Peignot, who was ordained a priest for the SSPX in 1982. He sexually abused five boys in 1985–87. These crimes were known to Fr. Paul Aulagnier, his superior (Fr. Aulagnier was the district superior of the SSPX in France from 1976–1994), but he was not removed from any priestly responsibilities. Further sexual abuse by Fr. Philippe Peignot was reported to Fr. Aulagnier in 1990, and these reports were made known to the then-superior general of the SSPX, Fr. Franz Schmidberger.
The victim of this abuse was assured by Fr. Schmidberger that Fr. Peignot would not be allowed to have any further contact with children. However, Fr. Schmidberger reversed this decision shortly afterwards, allowing Fr. Peignot to work at scout camps. When a later district superior of France attempted to restore the ban on Fr. Peignot's having contact with children, Bp. Fellay — who had by then become the superior general — overrode the ban again.

The reason for these decisions is that Fr. Schmidberger and Bp. Fellay understood the sexual abuse being committed in the way that the sexual abuser understood it. To impose any sort of punishment for sexual abuse, from the point of view of the abuser, is a crying injustice to the person punished. It is also unfair because it is giving the victim what they want. Since the victim is seen as an enemy who deserves punishment himself just because he is a victim, it is wrong — in the sexual abuser's understanding of things — to gratify the victim's vindictive and unreasonable demands by imposing any sort of punishment on the person who abused him.

Instead, they believe the opposite should be done. The abuser should be treated in a way that erases the injustice of the accusation, and that demonstrates that the victim's evil pursuit of the abuser is being rejected and countered in the way that will hurt the victim most. This is done by placing the abuser in a position that gives him the opportunity to abuse again — in Fr. Abbet's case, by moving him to a priory conveniently attached to a boy's school.

We can see this outlook with many other cases where priests of the Society are found to be guilty of sexual abuse and are not only protected but moved on to fresh fields and pastures new, where they can continue abusing. Father Peignot, for example, was repeatedly assigned as a chaplain for boy scouts and scouting events after his sexual molestations became known to the SSPX authorities. There are many tasks for which the Society needs priests. He could have been put to work in a parish, in a convent or in some other capacity, rather than the one place where he would have most opportunity to abuse young boys. It also emerges in the astonishing practice of SSPX authorities protecting sexual abusers who are not priests, but simply laymen with some connection to the Society. This seems to be a new departure in corrupt behavior within the Church. 
The mentality of the sexual abuser is also shown in the way that the Society treats victims of sexual abuse. From a self-interested point of view, a good approach to these victims would be to mollify them as far as possible, to make them think that the Society sympathizes with them, is on their side and is shocked and dismayed at their abuse and doing its best to stamp out this evil. However, the SSPX consistently takes the opposite approach. It attempts to undermine and crush victims wherever possible. This is a workable strategy in some respects, but it is high-risk since the strategy is very damaging to the Society if found out. It is chosen because it conforms to the sexual abuser's desire to attack the victim and to get revenge for the injustice of being accused. This diagnosis of the motives and actions of the SSPX might seem outlandish to anyone who has not studied the facts in detail. However, the more one knows about the way the SSPX deals with sexual abuse, the more one sees that it is in fact correct.

Strong Influence of Sex Abusers

Why would the authorities of the SSPX think and act like this? In one way, this question is easy to answer. It is because sexual abusers are influential enough within the Society to be able to determine its policy and shape its conception of sexual abusers and their victims. They form the culture of the organization. As a result, the persons in authority conform to and implement policies that reflect the outlook and interests of these abusers.
This phenomenon has been seen elsewhere in the Church. It occurs when sexual abusers are either at the top of an organization or else become influential enough that their interests cannot be sacrificed despite their not occupying the top post. The former situation is easy enough to understand. It occurred in the Legionaries of Christ, which was founded and led by a sexual abuser who had total control of its actions and personnel. The latter situation is more complex and requires some analysis. I will assume that the SSPX was not run by sexual predators from the outset and that it is the latter situation that is relevant here.

One should begin this analysis by acknowledging that when most people encounter evidence of sexual abuse, they don't want to hear about it and do their best to deny or ignore it. This is one of the most shocking discoveries made by those who are themselves abused or who attempt to help victims of abuse. The reason for it is that recognizing the existence of sexual abuse leads to accepting difficult, upsetting and threatening responsibilities.

Most people do not want to do this and indeed often do not have the psychological wherewithal required for it, so they choose to ignore or deny the abuse or distance themselves from the situation. In order to justify this denial, they often attack the victim, whom they resent for having placed them in an uncomfortable situation.

The individual authority-holders in the SSPX are as prone to this reaction as anyone else, and they are also affected by the serious consequences for their institution if the accusations turn out to be true. This gives sexual abusers an initial advantage when their victims accuse them.
However, this factor comes into play when sexual abusers have already been incorporated into an organization. It does not explain how they got there in the first place, and it does not explain how they come to be present in an organization in large numbers and to determine its approach to sexual abuse.

Any explanation of how this came to happen with the SSPX must begin with the founder, Abp. Marcel Lefebvre. I will assume that it did not happen with his knowledge or as a result of his decision. I could be wrong, but this assumption fits with what is known of his past. He was a successful missionary and bishop for decades, and there does not seem to be a record of his appointing and covering up for sexual abusers in these roles. Nonetheless, the influence of sexual abusers in the SSPX is so strong that it must have established itself when he was the superior general. How might this have happened?

Choosing Quantity over Quality 
What follows is speculation from the facts that are available. The explanation I will propose is that the influence of sexual abusers in the SSPX resulted from the general shortcomings of the men trained and ordained as priests of the Society, shortcomings that were not properly guarded against or even understood by Abp. Lefebvre.

The editor of a respected French Catholic journal told me once that Abp. Lefebvre made the mistake of choosing quantity over quality when he set up the Society. This is true, but itself requires explanation.
The starting point for this explanation is that Abp. Lefebvre never seems to have done a postmortem on the preconciliar Church. He did not identify the weaknesses that caused it to collapse so quickly and thoroughly. He seems just to have thought that the preconciliar systems of training and theology were good ones that had been wrongly abandoned because of weakness, folly or treachery among the ecclesiastical leadership, and that what was needed was for them to be restored. Indeed he thought that they would be restored within a reasonable timeframe and that the postconciliar changes and problems would not be a lasting condition.

He also seems to have overestimated the number of Catholics who thought as he did on religious subjects out of mature understanding and conviction and to have been willing to take at face value the men who came asking to join his Society. It is as if he considered such men to be like seminarians in the 1920s, when the population of Catholics who were committed to the systems and beliefs of the preconciliar Church were much larger, the opportunities and status on offer for seminarians of this sort were far greater and the backing of ecclesiastical authority for these systems and beliefs was solid.

He did not see that in his own totally different situation, the motivations and character of the men who came forward to join his enterprise would have to be radically different from those of the seminarians of the 1920s, and that their professions of faith and commitment would often spring from motives and personality traits that did not appear on the surface and that were less than ideal. Nor did he take into account the implications of the fact that the preconciliar system of priestly training was built on the inculcation of blind obedience and conformity. It is one thing to have such a system for training leaders in an important, powerful organization that is a dominant force in many countries. In that sort of situation, you can still attract serious, capable people who are willing to put up with the training and will survive it somewhat intact. There is also a corrective to the effects of this training, resulting from the fact that the senior leaders eventually have to discharge important responsibilities.
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Bp. Richard Williamson

The pressure of these responsibilities does at some point select for men with character and initiative. The situation of a small, marginalized, despised community where leaders are trained and selected for blind obedience and conformity is very different. Sociologically, this kind of community has the characteristics of a cult. In consequence, the men who come forward as seminarians for a Catholic community of this kind will often be ones who want to be leaders in a cult. Richard Williamson, whom Lefebvre ordained as a bishop, is a clear example of this phenomenon, but there will have been many others.
Politics and Predation

The political connections of many of the first followers of the SSPX would also have brought problems of which Abp. Lefebvre was not aware. In France, many of these followers were former supporters of the Vichy regime in the Second World War. They were inclined to affiliate themselves with the SSPX in part because of an old alienation from the Holy See that had been produced by the condemnation of Charles Maurras' Action Française, and in part out of resentment towards a French hierarchy that had rapturously supported Pétain and then left all the Vichy followers in the lurch after the Allied victory.

Archbishop Lefebvre did not himself belong to this section of French society. He had been a missionary in Africa during the Vichy period, which meant that the question of involvement with Vichy did not really arise for him, and indeed his father had worked for the French Resistance and was beaten to death by the Germans in the Sonnenburg concentration camp in 1944 as a result.

But he did not seem to recognize what loyalty to Vichy and the far-right meant in the 1970s. It is as if such loyalty to him meant no more than a generic conservatism of the 1920s that included some sympathy with Action Française. In particular, he did not grasp the moral significance of committed anti-Semitism after the Holocaust.

One of the worst stains on Vichy France was the fact that it stripped Jews of civil rights in its Statut des Juifs and handed over Jews to the Germans to be murdered — without even having to be asked to do so by the occupiers. Many Vichy supporters after the war rationalized away these anti-Semitic crimes without either facing up to them or approving of them. But some of them not only approved of these crimes, but approved of the Vichy régime because it had committed them.

It would not be fair to reproach Abp. Lefebvre for not excluding supporters of Vichy France from his movement. For one thing, the majority of Frenchmen had belonged to this category at one time. But he does not seem to have exercised enough discernment with respect to this group. He does not seem to have grasped that they included very sinister elements, which had to be identified and rejected.

One can make an educated guess that there was a link between far-right politics, anti-Semitism and pederasty among elements of the SSPX clergy and faithful. It is well known that there was an important homosexual and pederastic element in National Socialist and Fascist circles. The homosexual English journalist Johann Hari has described this association in the case of Ernst Röhm, the commander of Hitler's stormtroopers (the SA) from 1930 to 1934, a man who played a key role in Hitler's taking power in Germany.

From a Jan. 2008 Huffpost article:

As [Ernst Röhm] put it in his autobiography, "Since I am an immature and wicked man, war and unrest appeal to me more than the good bourgeois order." As historian Louis Snyder explains, Röhm "projected a social order in which homosexuality would be regarded as a human behavior pattern of high repute. ... He flaunted his homosexuality in public and insisted his cronies do the same. He believed straight people weren't as adept at bullying and aggression as homosexuals, so homosexuality was given a high premium in the SA."

Hitler had Röhm shot as a threat to his power in 1934, but the association of homosexuality with Nazi sympathies persisted after the fall of the Third Reich.
Jörg Haider, the right-wing Austrian politician who died in 2008, is an example. Hari remarks, "With the exception of Jean-Marie Le Pen, all the most high-profile fascists in Europe in the past 30 years have been gay." In Vichy France, the homosexual man of letters and traitor Robert Brasillach became a hero and martyr to the French far-right after he was very properly executed by de Gaulle. He is still glorified by them.

Far-right extremists who joined the SSPX as priests or who were influential as lay donors may have belonged to a pederastic wing of this element. This would have provided a nucleus and network of sexual abusers. Networks of this kind do not advertise themselves, so it is impossible in the present state of knowledge to say how far this was the case.

For the reasons given above, right from the beginning a significant portion of the men who came forward as seminarians for the SSPX were attracted to the post of leader in a marginalized, closed, authoritarian community, and/or were sympathetic to Nazi and fascist political ideals. These men were morally, intellectually and spiritually warped. Their faults were ones that would naturally make them inclined to sexual abuse as a form of sexual gratification, because such abuse involves the domination, humiliation and destruction of its victims — exactly the kind of activity that appealed to them, made them want to be leaders in a cult-like group and attracted them to far-right political views.

This inclination would have translated into action in many cases. And persons of this kind who did not share these inclinations, or at least did not act upon them, would have had a natural sympathy with those who did act on them. They would also have come from a far-right milieu in which such abuse was not uncommon, and its toleration and concealment was the general rule. That is how sexual abusers came to have an important presence in the SSPX.

The Ideal Camouflage

Not only was Abp. Lefebvre unaware of the risks of ordaining men of this type, it would have been easy for individuals of this kind to pass off their traits to him as virtues. In an interview with The Wanderer, Fr. Paul Aulagnier observed that Abp. Lefebvre "hated the modern world's revolutionary spirit that refused subjection, submission, subordination to a created order, to a divine order." These warped individuals could easily present themselves to him as sharing this hatred and as 100% on his side in this respect.

Moreover, in the set-up that he established, they got results, up to a point. Their drive for power and love of humiliating their underlings meant that in a religious community set up on preconciliar lines that enforced blind and unquestioning obedience, they could ensure discipline and make things run well in the eyes of their superiors. Their methods and personalities meant they could not produce significant achievements or foster growth in the communities they were in charge of. Their influence would explain much of the huge wastage rate among the priests of the SSPX, estimated to be as high as 40% after ordination. But these failures could be explained away as due to the difficulty of operating in a hostile, anti-Catholic world.

Many people, including the author of this piece, have been astonished and taken aback by the extreme contrast between the moral and theological doctrines that are the reason for being of the SSPX and the Society's practice of protecting sexual abusers. But from the point of view of the abusers themselves, this contrast had important advantages. It provided the ideal camouflage and enabled them to use an appeal to the very doctrines they were violating in order to protect themselves. Since the Catholic faith is, in fact, true, it provides the best and strongest bait to draw people into acceptance of a cult-like set-up. In the twisted psychology of sexual abusers and sociopaths, this deceitful appeal to the Faith they were profaning added an extra pleasure and spice to their abuse.

Certain special factors seem to have obtained with the SSPX in the United States. The original attempt to establish the SSPX in the United States was a fiasco that resulted in the departure for sedevacantism of many of the priests ordained for the Society there. Archbishop Lefebvre, according to what I have heard, was inclined to give up on the United States as a result. He was talked out of this by the then-Fr. Richard Williamson, one of the few SSPX priests in the United States not to depart for sedevacantism.

Williamson, from this point on, was the most influential founding figure for the Society in the United States. His anti-Semitism and Nazi sympathies are well known but do not exhaust his repellent characteristics. Even the most brainwashed SSPX adherents have been known to observe that his behavior on occasion is bizarre, aberrant and unhinged.

One former novice in an SSPX contemplative convent told me that when Williamson came to give a spiritual conference to the nuns, his talk dealt exclusively with conspiracy theories about the assassination of President John F. Kennedy. The former SSPX seminarian Arturo Vasquez has observed: "I entered the scene of the SSPX in the late 1990s when the powerful triumvirate of Fr. Peter Scott, Fr. Ramon Angles and Bp. Williamson ruled the United States district, turning it almost into a far right-wing cult."
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Fr. Ramon Angles, accused of pederasty in the US and Ireland

Father Angles is an example of the combination of Nazi views and pederasty mentioned above, venerating Hitler and sodomizing a 14-year-old boy, Michael Gonzalez, who subsequently committed suicide and referred to Angles' crime in his suicide note. The combination of Williamson, Scott and Angles was a recipe for unparalleled disaster, producing SSPX communities in the United States that pullulated with every kind of physical and sexual abuse.
In the case of the SSPX in the United States, one may wonder if a certain Eurocentrism was not at work. Would the extreme and blatant methods of the SSPX leadership in the United States — and the conditions they produced — have been seen as acceptable by the Society in France, for example? Probably not, but expectations were lower for the midwestern United States. And it must also be admitted that Bp. Williamson's methods got results on a material scale. He built up a community that raised money, produced vocations, built and filled seminaries. It must regrettably be acknowledged that this was possible because, in one respect, his methods were suited to the American environment.

Americans have many good qualities, and I hope it will not cause offense to say that, like all other nationalities, they have some weak points as well. One of these is a certain vulnerability to the appeal of religious cults. The country, after all, was founded by Puritans who were cultists, and their influence can be felt to this day — in political correctness, for example, which is a cult of a secular kind. Williamson (an Englishman) knew this, and worked on this weak point to develop cult-like groups in the SSPX in America.

The Bottom Line

So the explanation proposed for the influence of sexual abusers in the SSPX is the following: They established themselves firmly in the society under Abp. Lefebvre for the reasons given above. 
The existence and activity of the Society, always a difficult struggle, became even more challenging after the death of its founder. Acting in solidarity, the faction of sexual abusers would have been able to make itself indispensable to whomever was in charge of the Society and to ensure that the leader of the Society was — if not one of its members — at least in full sympathy with it. Bishop Fellay fit that bill perfectly. This power enabled the faction to cause the policy and mental attitudes of the leadership of the Society to conform to its own in matters of sexual abuse, with the results that we see today.

Rather similar developments occurred in many other dioceses and religious orders throughout the world in the 20th century. The only significant differences in the case of the Society are the particular mechanisms through which sexual abusers came to power and influence and the contrast between the Society's professed exemption from the corruption that besets the rest of the Church and the real state of affairs.

What is the future for the SSPX under these conditions? A real reform seems unlikely. Corruption is too well established in the Society, and there is no will in Rome to intervene and force positive changes. One possibility is that the Society will decide to cut its losses and effectively shut down its U.S. operations, preserving itself in Europe and other countries where its activities are more secure. The leadership knows that there is both less tolerance of sexual abuse in the United States and a more severe problem there. It seems, however, unlikely that this strategy can work in the long term, due to the gravity of the information already made public and the fact that these offenses will continue to be committed absent a drastic reform of the Society. The future of the SSPX is as uncertain as the future of anything in the corrupt and largely ruined Catholic Church.

Dr. John R. T. Lamont is a Canadian philosopher and theologian. He studied at the Dominican College in Ottawa and Oxford University, and has taught philosophy and theology in Catholic seminaries. He is the author of a number of scholarly papers, and of the book Divine Faith.
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Father Benoît Wailliez, a priest of the Society of St. Pius X (SSPX), recently circulated a written defense [SEE https://drive.google.com/file/d/1Ije6piEN0_roU9yi1a34n_uBR89rvxux/view] justifying his behavior in the face of Church Militant's Spotlight investigation [SEE IN 23 JANUARY 2021 FILE, ON PAGE 3] showing he endangered children by allowing a pedophile priest access to boys he abused under Wailliez's watch. Wailliez makes a number of claims easily countered by the facts — among them, his gratuitous slur against Church Militant calling us "gutter media" that "doesn't care about victims but only cares about 'scoops.'"
The two families of the victims — the Peeters and the Webers — who first went public in our Spotlight, strongly object to this slur. In fact, Viktoria Weber (whose two sons Richard and Edmond were abused by Fr. Frédéric Abbet) calls Wailliez a "dangerous coward" whose conduct more appropriately fits the description "gutter."

"I do not recognize Church Militant by this 'gutter' characterization," wrote Weber. "It rather fits your behavior. ... Please stop playing the innocent and ignorant one. ... You consciously took the risk for granted, children becoming victims, over and over again."

The relative of a victim of Fr. Philippe Peignot, whose story Church Militant covered in the article "SSPX Gave Pedophile Repeated Access to Boys," [SEE IN 23 JANUARY 2021 FILE, ON PAGE 15] also weighed in:

So CM doesn't care about victims ... but SSPX does, is that right??? Unbelievable! While the SSPX says it stands by the victims, Church Militant ACTS in support of the victims. Actions speak louder than words. Honestly, I was out of my mind when reading this under Fr. Wailliez's pen. Given what we know about his actions, how does he dare to lecture you about helping victims?! He'd better take a low profile and shut his big mouth. He's in no position to speak about supporting victims!
By contrast, Michael Voris personally knows the Webers and feels strongly about their sons, and Christine has included an appeal to contact the prosecutor's office in [Fr. Peignot's victim's] case, and the Fully [Switzerland] authorities in the Peeters' and Weber's case. Yet they were under no obligation to do so. By contrast, Fr. Wailliez was under an obligation to help the victims and he failed them.

Background

Abbet came to the Brussels SSPX priory in 2006 on order of then-superior general Bp. Bernard Fellay, living under the same roof as Our Lady of Holy Hope School, where several boys were then boarding.

The Brussels SSPX compound consists of three contiguous houses connected by a common hallway on two levels (effectively three houses merged into one), with a shared courtyard. Once someone enters the compound, it's essentially impossible to keep him from entering any other house within the compound. Thus, Abbet had direct and easy access to the boys' dorm by simply walking from his door through a short corridor and up the stairs to the boys' sleeping quarters — which he did throughout the years of 2010-11, abusing boys in the night.

The transfer by Fellay was in direct violation of a 10-year ban on Abbet from being around children, imposed by an SSPX tribunal only two months earlier.

While the tribunal had acquitted Abbet of sex abuse based on lack of sufficient evidence (it was the alleged victim's word against the priest's), it was not a declaration of innocence; the court decree explicitly stated that "there remains the suspicion of a crime," leading to a number of restrictions imposed on Abbet, including, most significantly, a decade-long prohibition on Abbet being around children.

Fellay violated the prohibition within two months, relying on the assurance of two psychologists who (wrongly) diagnosed Abbet as not having pedophilic tendencies.

The canonical court ruling did not say the superior general was free to lift restrictions based on the word of psychologists, whether two or 200. The court had imposed a ban on being around children for a decade, with no exceptions. In short, Fellay abused his power and violated the ecclesiastical court's order.
Fellay claims he was unaware at the time that the Brussels priory had an adjoining boarding school, but this is hardly believable. Boys had been boarding there since at least 1999 — fully seven years before Fellay assigned Abbet to live there. And Fellay traveled to Brussels and stayed at that very priory, thus making him aware of the school.
Granting Fellay the benefit of the doubt and taking him at his word that he did not know, this still does not exonerate him; it was the superior general's job to do the requisite research before transferring an accused pedophile to a new assignment. Fellay failed to do so.

Fellay also understood the demands of Wailliez's job and that it would have been impossible to supervise Abbet. Wailliez was district superior of the BeNeLux region (which combines Belgium, The Netherlands and Luxembourg), which would have required frequent travel between Brussels, Antwerp and the Netherlands, with lengthy absences from the Brussels priory. His work made it impossible to supervise Abbet. Fellay knew this, yet he assigned Abbet to live there anyway.

The fact that Fellay clearly failed to take Abbet's case seriously led to the grievous injuries suffered by several boys in Brussels. Thus Fellay's criminal negligence (along with that of Fr. Jürgen Wegner and Wailliez) can be blamed for these young boys' abuse.

Wailliez Understood the Restrictions

A 2017 letter from SSPX Secretary Fr. Christian Thouvenot confirms that Fr. Wailliez had been made aware of the ban on Abbet when Wailliez became prior of the Brussels chapel in August 2008.
Wailliez claims he was unaware of the underlying reasons for the ban — but the ban speaks for itself. Abbet was forbidden to be around children. Such restrictions wouldn't be imposed unless Abbet were a danger to kids. This is what in common parlance is known as a "no-brainer." Wailliez's attempt to reduce his culpability on this score falls flat.

Wailliez also appears to congratulate himself for moving Abbet from a bedroom below the boys' dorm (where he had been living during Fr. Jürgen Wegner's time, in direct violation of the ban) to the priest's quarters down the hall.
While on its face this move appears commendable, if Wailliez had had integrity and conviction and true care for the children in his charge, he would've called up Fellay and insisted that Abbet be assigned in a remote priory, miles away from children, rather than merely moving him a few yards away, which ultimately proved worthless in preventing abuse.

It also appears that Abbet continued to use the bedroom beneath the boys' dorm into 2011. According to Viktoria Weber, when she went to the school to gather her son Richard's belongings, as they had withdrawn from the school, she asked her son where Abbet had abused him. Richard pointed to that very room beneath the boys' dorm, which included an office with an attached bedroom. The boys had always referred to it as "Abbet's room."

Construction of a Brick Wall

A handful of parents slept in quarters on the same floor as the boys' dorm — but the reason they did not know about Abbet's abuse (which took place at night, while they were sleeping) is because Abbet was permitted to erect a brick wall cutting off the boys' dorm from the parents' quarters and the rest of the rooms.

Abbet began construction of the wall around the summer break of 2010, and reportedly paid for the construction himself. Everyone at the priory was aware of the construction, as it took some time and of course involved noise, dust and all the regular interference involved in construction work.

Wailliez has never explained why he permitted Abbet to build this wall, nor did Abbet provide a satisfactory reason as to why the wall was needed.

It was only after the abuse was discovered in April 2011 that parents realized the purpose of the wall was to cut off the parents' direct access to their children at night in order for Abbet to abuse them freely and undiscovered.

Again, this can be laid at the feet of Wailliez's negligence, who failed to exercise supervision over his own priest.

School in Namur

One of the most damning indictments against Wailliez is the fact that he put Abbet in charge of catechism lessons for children at the SSPX chapel in Namur, 44 miles away from Brussels — again, in direct violation of the ban imposed on Abbet from working with children. Wailliez, of course, never mentions this fact while he's busy defending his conduct. But this is consistent with his track record, according to the victims' families, in which he only offered information when he had to and never volunteered it on his own.

Worse, when Abbet's abuse came to light in April 2011, the parents of the abuse victims asked Wailliez to inform the parents in Namur and conduct an investigation there to ensure the priest had not harmed children in that chapel. Wailliez said parents would be informed and an investigation conducted — but parents in Namur later confirmed this was never done. They were kept entirely in the dark about the pedophile who had been teaching their children.

Parents eventually learned by word of mouth about the abuse in Brussels. This incident so shocked and outraged the Namur community that it led to a mass defection from the SSPX to the Resistance (led by Bp. Richard Williamson). The move only confirmed their long-running distrust of Fellay, whom they believe not only sold out to Rome but also deceived them with regard to this case of horrific sex abuse.
In a strange twist, after joining the Resistance, parents asked for a new priest to be sent to teach their children. The priest sent was none other than Fr. Philippe Peignot [SEE IN 23 JANUARY 2021 FILE, ON PAGE 15], newly joined to the Resistance after an SSPX canonical tribunal found him guilty himself of sexually abusing young boys. After the Namur community found out about Peignot's background, they had him dismissed from their chapel.

Reporting to Police

Wailliez appears to congratulate himself for going to police as soon as he learned of Abbet's abuse in April 2011, without being told by the victims' parents. But Weber counters that the reason parents did not ask is because during their April 7, 2011 meeting with Wailliez, he told them at the start of the meeting he'd go to police. Thus, there was no reason to ask, as he had already assured him he would do so.

Besides, reporting the crime to Belgian authorities was required by law and the minimum expectation of any individual in this situation. For Wailliez to hold this forth as if it were a laudatory thing rather than the minimum basic requirement in the case of child sex abuse is revealing.

Worse, based on Wailliez's recent written defense, there's the possibility that Wailliez may never have gone to police at all if Fellay had not told him to go. Thus, without his superior general's order, he may never have even met this bare moral and legal minimum.

Mocked for withholding Evidence

Wailliez claims he flew all the way from Sri Lanka to testify at the appeal in 2017, with Fellay's permission, as if he is to be congratulated for this — while leaving out the significant detail that he withheld key information and evidence from authorities for six years.
In fact, Wailliez was mocked in court by attorneys for Fr. Abbet and for the Peeters for suddenly growing a conscience and deciding to testify. If Wailliez's behavior had been as upstanding as he seems to insist, the lawyers would have warmly thanked him for his cooperation, rather than mocking him for finally deciding to testify — six years after the fact.

Regardless of Wailliez's protestations, it remains the case that the prosecutor thundered in the courtroom: "The SSPX should've been put on trial!" and not just Abbet.

It remains the case that the panel of judges accused the SSPX of "criminogenic behavior," meaning fostering pathologically criminal conduct by repeatedly endangering children.

And it remains the case that three European victims' rights groups issued a joint statement harshly condemning the SSPX and contradicting the SSPX's claims that it "cooperated with authorities." (Full statement available here)

Wailliez obtained audio recordings of Fr. Abbet from April 7, 2011, in the immediate aftermath of the abuse allegations. During that meeting Abbet made significant admissions:

(Abbet admits temptations around boys

(Abbet admits he's spoken with Fellay about his temptations around boys, and thus Fellay was aware

(When asked if he abused boys in Brussels, Abbet says that "something may have happened" — a partial confession

Father Wailliez was questioned no fewer than six times by police during the pre-trial investigation in the Abbet case. Not once during did he mention the incriminating audio recordings. Nor did he mention Abbet's prior abuse allegations in Switzerland and the 10-year ban imposed on the priest. He withheld both crucial information and key evidence for six years.

The Peeters also informed Church Militant that Wailliez was initially hesitant to bring forward the audio recordings, and in fact made up excuses not to do so, claiming at one point he could not come to court because he had a prior engagement (a retreat or something similar). The Peeters were so outraged and frustrated that they wrote him a strongly worded letter demanding that he appear in court on the next available date.

The Peeters also asked Wailliez whether he was stalling because he'd been forbidden to come to court by Fellay.

Wailliez eventually brought the recordings to court.

In comments to Church Militant, Florence Peeters said, "I think he had to choose between the truth and obedience to Fellay."
SSPX Protected Sadistic Rapist
Bishop Fellay broke civil and canon law

https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/sspx-protected-sadistic-rapist
Christine Niles, June 9, 2020 – Images omitted
A priest of the Society of St. Pius X (SSPX) sentenced to 19 years in prison for the sadistic rape of three women — one he tortured with knitting needles and scissors — was protected by Bp. Bernard Fellay, in violation of French law.

The case of Fr. Christophe Roisnel shocked the conscience of the French nation in 2017, when news broke of his criminal trial for rape of three teachers — one of them a mother — at the Notre-Dame de la Sablonnière academy in Goussonville, near Paris, where he had been director of the school since 2006. While reports of his crimes exploded in French media at the time, his story has had almost no coverage in English-language media.
The sexual assaults took place in 2010, during exorcisms he had convinced the women to undergo, claiming they would help them to overcome the trauma of sex abuse they may have suffered in the past.

According to French Catholic media outlet La Croix,

The victims accused him of having used his psychological influence over them to achieve his ends. His modus operandi: to discuss sexual assaults with them, real or invented, that they suffered in the past, to convince them of the need for "therapy." He then made them relive these traumatic episodes so that, he said, they could overcome them.

His argument was that they must "overcome evil with evil," convincing the women to relive their past sexual trauma in order to bring about "healing." These exorcism sessions included flogging and rape, and in the case of one woman, they included what the court called "torture" and "acts of barbarism": abusing her with an assortment of items, including scissors, knitting needles, broom handles, a toothbrush, paintbrush and horsehair glove, among other things.

One of the women, who used the pseudonym "Eliane," said he forced her to undress in a barn in Manche, in Normandy, raping her with several items, before doing it again later in the school cellar as well as other locations, using increasingly larger and more dangerous objects.

"He said that I had been whipped in the past and that I had to relive these events," she told investigators. "He then hit me all over my body with his shirt."
Another woman, "Diane," who was forced to undergo oral sex and sodomy, and who even broke her arm attempting to flee one of Roisnel's attacks, told another SSPX priest about the abuse. The priest refused to report the crimes to police, claiming the woman was an adult and it was her responsibility to do so.

Roisnel was arrested in 2014 and put on trial, where he admitted he had engaged in sex with the women but claimed it was "consensual." The criminal court handed down a conviction in 2017, with a sentence of 16 years in prison. Roisnel appealed the conviction — which resulted in an increase in his sentence to 19 years, after evidence of his torture was introduced in court.
Roisnel's defense attorney was Jérôme Triomphe, an attorney and devoté of the SSPX, well known in traditionalist French circles, who also represented the Vincent Lambert family, the famous quadriplegic considered France's "Terry Schiavo." Ironically, Lambert's condition could be blamed on SSPX priest Fr. Philippe Peignot, who sexually abused Lambert as a boy (abuse to which Peignot admitted), leading to a downward spiral and a life of drugs and alcohol, ending in the fateful car crash while driving intoxicated that landed Lambert in the hospital, paralyzed.

Fellay Broke French Law

Bishop Bernard Fellay, superior general at the time of Roisnel's assaults, first became aware of the abuse in 2010, when two teachers at the school and one of their friends reported Roisnel's sexual assaults to the SSPX.

In violation of French law, neither Fellay nor the French district superior, Fr. Régis de Cacqueray, reported Roisnel's rapes to police. Instead, they quietly sent him to the Capuchin monastery of Morgon in Beaujolais, 30 miles north of Lyon, for a period of two years' penance. He remained there until March 2013, after which Fellay transferred him to a boys' school in Chateauroux.
This attempt to handle the matter internally, while consistent with the track record of the SSPX, was a direct violation of French law.

According to art. 434-1 of France's criminal code:

For anyone who is aware of a crime whose effects can still be prevented or limited, or whose perpetrators are likely to commit new crimes which could be prevented, failure to inform the judicial or administrative authorities is punishable with three years' imprisonment and a fine of €45,000.

A handful of exceptions are made for spouses, family members, health professionals and social workers, but there are no exceptions for clergy.

Thus, in the act of shielding his priest from the law, Fellay broke the law himself and could have been prosecuted and sentenced to three years in prison and a hefty fine.

By the time Roisnel was caught and convicted, however, the statute of limitations had already expired on Fellay's own illegal behavior, leaving him out of prosecution's reach.
The victims had initially trusted Fellay to handle the case properly, but were scandalized when they discovered the superior general had reinstated the rapist to active ministry at the boys' academy, prompting the victims to report Roisnel's crimes to the authorities. He was indicted by secular authorities in April 2014.

An investigation revealed that Roisnel had also attempted his sexual "therapy" on one of the boys during a summer scout camp, after his two years of "penance" at the Capuchin monastery. The session involved the priest's graphic questioning of the boy using crude words, ending in the boy's nervous breakdown.

Three other victims were also discovered during the secular investigation, forced to undergo the sexual "therapy" sessions by Roisnel.

Fellay Broke Canon Law

An SSPX canonical case was also launched against Roisnel, the tribunal finding him guilty of "sexual acts" without penetration or violence. The tribunal came to this conclusion by ignoring the testimony of the victims, including one woman whose arm was broken in her attempt to flee the perpetrator during one of his assaults. What's more, the canonical proceeding was itself a violation of canon law.

Little reported by media, a longstanding arrangement exists between Rome and the SSPX, stretching back to the end of the pontificate of Pope John Paul II, whereby the Society agrees to refer accused clergy to the Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith (CDF). The CDF then delegates authority to the SSPX to try the priest in canonical court, conferring on Bp. Fellay the power to act as a canonical judge on behalf of the Holy See.
This was confirmed by Fellay in a May 2015 talk given in Arcadia, California. Fellay clarified to French media in July 2015 that the arrangement was not recent: "This is not new but has existed for over 10 years."

Fellay was thus bound to follow the Normae de Gravioribus Delictis, whose article 16 states: "Whenever the Ordinary or Hierarch receives a report of a more grave delict, which has at least the semblance of truth, once the preliminary investigation has been completed, he is to communicate the matter to the Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith" (Quoties Ordinarius vel Hierarcha notitiam saltem verisimilem habeat de delicto graviore, investigatione praevia peracta, eam significet Congregationi pro Doctrina Fidei").

In violation of Fellay's obligations under canon law, he never reported Roisnel's crimes to the CDF, preferring to treat this as a purely internal matter.

It appears Fellay believes he is above the law, both secular and ecclesiastical.

SSPX Caught in Contradictions

"This case highlights the mismanagement of sex abuse cases in the SSPX," blasted French daily La Croix in a May 7, 2017 article, two days after the court handed down its sentence against Roisnel.

In a defensive response, SSPX Secretary Fr. Christian Thouvenot told media, "Our own investigation did not reveal the gravity of the facts."
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Fr. Christian Thouvenot
"The victims may have been traumatized and did not dare to admit everything," he clarified — failing to reveal that Roisnel had actually pressured the women to retract their statements.

This was the same excuse Thouvenot offered in the case of pedophile priest Fr. Philippe Peignot, guilty of abusing multiple boys while assigned at an SSPX priory in Brussels, Belgium: "[W]e only became aware of what was meant by 'impure touching' very late; of course, we would have taken strong action if we had known the details" — failing to note that the "details" (Peignot groping and assaulting an 11-year-old boy) had been made known to then-superior general Fr. Franz Schmidberger early on, who not only failed to report the crime to police, but lifted restrictions on Peignot's access to children. Fellay was also guilty of the same.

Asked whether the Society would implement psychological screening of candidates for the priesthood in order to avoid such tragic outcomes in the future, Thouvenot said, "The case is too recent, we have not yet had time to take decisions in this direction."

This is a direct contradiction of Bp. Fellay's own words, however, who said four months earlier in a Jan. 24, 2017 response to Swedish media organization SVT that "candidates to the priesthood are assessed and evaluated with respect to their emotional and psychological balance during their six or seven years of training. Should a candidate show any signs of potential weaknesses, he will not be allowed to become a priest."
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Not only are Fellay's statements a direct contradiction of those of the Society's Secretary (who is supposed to speak on behalf of the superior general), they are demonstrably false.
Thouvenot himself admits that they had detected troubling signs in Roisnel from early on: "We spent six years together. There was certainly in him a breeding ground favorable to psychological imbalance, but nobody really detected it."

This calls into question either Thouvenot's honesty about what they actually detected in Roisnel — or the SSPX's spectacular failure to spot a violent, twisted pervert of the worst kind in their own ranks, who raped his victim with scissors, knitting needles and a broom handle. Either way, the response hardly evokes confidence in Society leadership.
Fellay's statements are perhaps most notoriously disproven in the case of Fr. Frédéric Abbet, Fr. Frédéric Abbet a convicted pedophile, who came to the SSPX seminary with a previous incident of sexual misconduct when he was 15, and was later disciplined in seminary for having an "amitié particulière" — a particular friendship, i.e., an unhealthy emotional/romantic attachment to a fellow seminarian. Yet he was allowed to go on to become a priest — contrary to what Fellay claims would've happen — abusing multiple boys as a result and eventually convicted and sentenced to prison.

One is led to ask: Who is telling the truth, and who is lying? And in light of the SSPX's stunning failures with regard to Roisnel and a number of other abuser priests, how can SSPX devotés continue to have any confidence in the Society's ability to screen its candidates and ordain men worthy of their high calling?
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Bp. Fellay has a long track record of shuffling around predator priests, sending them away for "prayer and penance" before reinstating them to active ministry, where they often go on to abuse again

SSPX Modus Operandi

But as shown in a number of cases, Fellay's decision to handle the Roisnel case internally, sending the abuser off to do prayer and penance for a brief time before letting him loose on society, is the SSPX's typical modus operandi — the same modus operandi of so many bishops in the Church exposed after the Boston 2002 sex abuse scandal, who would send pederasts and rapists away for brief stints in rehab before reinstating them at new assignments, where they often went on to abuse again.

Fellay is no different, and apparently has never learned the lessons of the 2002 sex abuse crisis in America — a crisis that has cost the U.S. Church more than $4 billion in abuse payouts and countless lives devastated and souls lost. While the SSPX has had to pay for attorneys' fees and legal bills in a number of sex abuse cases, it remains unknown how much the Society's own abuse scandals have cost them — and more significantly, how many lives they've devastated and souls they've lost by SSPX leadership's malfeasance.

SSPX silences witnesses

Leadership running scared
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/sspx-warns-against-speaking-to-law-enforcement                         

Christine Niles, St. Marys, Kansas, August 3, 2020
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                                                                                                            Fr. Scott Gardner/Fr. Pierre Duverger and Fr. Marc Vernoy
The Society of St. Pius X (SSPX) is discouraging its members from speaking privately to investigators, even as a criminal investigation into sex abuse cover-up is underway.

In a recent letter authored by U.S. District bursar Fr. Scott Gardner obtained by Church Militant, the priest warns the St. Marys, Kansas community against speaking with the Kansas Bureau of Investigation (KBI) without a lawyer present.

The KBI has been investigating the SSPX, along with all Catholic dioceses in Kansas, for at least a year as part of its criminal probe into clergy sex abuse and cover-up.

"If approached, decline to speak to them without an attorney present," Gardner insists, going on to offer his email as well as that of SSPX attorney Dan Lane. "If you have already spoken to law enforcement, please let us know right away."

Gardner accuses the KBI of speaking with priests, staff and employees of St. Marys "without our legal staff being present," claiming that investigators "have already ignored this warning."

"The KBI is investigating allegations of criminal conduct made against the SSPX," said KBI spokeswoman Melissa Underwood in a statement to Church Militant. "As such, our agents are permitted to question any individuals who we believe may have information related to this criminal investigation."

"We encourage anyone who has information related to these sexual abuse allegations to come forward," she added. "We can be reached at 1-800-KS-CRIME, or by emailing: ClergyAbuse@kbi.ks.gov."
There is no legal requirement for state investigators to inform attorneys when questioning witnesses. Witnesses are free to speak with law enforcement with or without lawyers present, and thus critics see the letter as further evidence of the SSPX's heavyhanded tactics to control and direct the investigation, and prevent witnesses from offering potentially incriminating information.

“[Y]ou are always entitled to have legal representation at any interview, and all Priests, staff, and employees must insist on this if contacted," Gardner orders.

The letter effectively bans witnesses from speaking privately with law enforcement, and prevents them from sharing incriminating information with investigators. Requiring that an SSPX attorney be present necessarily avoids the possibility of witnesses from sharing confidential information that could expose knowledge of abuse or cover-up, as the SSPX attorney exists not to protect witnesses' rights, but rather to protect the SSPX.

The tenor of the letter stands in stark contrast to the SSPX's promises of "transparency" and "accountability" stated on its website, and instead appears as an attempt to clamp down on communications with the KBI.

Several SSPX priests are currently under criminal investigation in Kansas, including Fr. Ramon Angles, former chaplain at St. Marys, alleged to have raped Michael Gonzalez when he was an adolescent. Gonzalez left written letters naming Angles as his abuser, and also told multiple family members, five of whom have spoken with the KBI. Gonzalez committed suicide in 2000.
In spite of the grave abuse allegations, the SSPX is not conducting its own investigation of Angles, who remains the top canonical advisor to the Society and has even crafted the SSPX's child protection policy. He resides in the palatial Villa Grifoni Sant'Angelo in Castel Gabbiano, Cremona, Italy.

Father Pierre Duverger, a priest formerly assigned in Kansas City, Missouri who is now principal of a school in Sanford, Florida, is also under criminal investigation. Several young women have leveled accusations of sexual assault and misconduct against Duverger.
While not a victim of abuse, Jassy Jacas was the first whistleblower to step forward and expose SSPX abuse cover-up. She reported Duverger's grooming behavior in 2018, and was assured by Fr. Jurgen Wegner, U.S. district superior, that severe restrictions had been placed on Duverger, including banning him from hearing women's confessions or conducting retreats or pilgrimages with women.

This claim turned out to be false, after Jacas saw a poster at an SSPX parish advertising a pilgrimage led by Duverger for men and women, with women making up around 50% of retreatants.

Wegner also admitted to Jacas that the SSPX never conducted an investigation into her allegations or those brought by other alleged victims, in spite of having known about them for years.

In fact, at least one SSPX priest admitted in writing that they had been made aware of allegations against Fr. Duverger going back more than a decade.

In an email dated Dec. 14, 2019, Fr. Hervé de la Tour admits to Jacas, "We know of several victims already," clarifying in a later email that the allegations go back as early as 2007 or 2008.

Shortly after Church Militant's April 22 Spotlight breaking the news of the KBI's investigation of the SSPX, the website for St. Thomas More Priory in Florida released a statement falsely claiming Duverger was not under investigation, and also falsely claiming he had been completely exonerated by the SSPX of all wrongdoing.
After Church Militant reported on the falsehoods contained in the statement, the statement vanished from the website — although local sources confirm Fr. Marc Vernoy, prior at the chapel, continued to distribute hard copies of the statement to the SSPX community.

Jacas confirmed that approximately eight priests are under criminal investigation by the KBI.

The full letter from Fr. Scott Gardner follows:
It has come to our attention that certain law enforcement officers may be in and around St. Marys, conducting interviews regarding an investigation of Priests, staff, and employees of St Marys and/or the District. In particular, KBI has already been warned that they are NOT to contact any Priest, staff, or employee without our legal staff being present. They have already ignored this warning, and it is likely that they will continue to do so until they are sanctioned by the courts.

We remind you of your Constitutional rights concerning any interview conducted by law enforcement. You are not required to speak to them just because they ask you to or make veiled threats against you or tell you that, if you have nothing to hide, you have nothing to fear. Further, you are always entitled to have legal representation at any interview, and all Priests, staff, and employees must insist on this if contacted.

You will be provided with legal representation by SSPX. If approached, decline to speak to them without an attorney present, email me [email redacted] and call our legal counsel Dan Lane at [number redacted]. If you have already spoken to law enforcement, please let us know right away.

Thank you for your cooperation in this serious matter.

In Christo,
Fr. Scott Gardner
United States District Bursar 
VIDEO 27:15

Sex pedophile sent to ‘Golden prison’

Fr. Pierre de Maillard may have as many as 19 victims
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/sspx-pedophile-sent-to-golden-prison                           

Louise Sorbonne, October 10, 2020
Fresh scandal has engulfed the Society of St. Pius X (SSPX): A priest of nearly 30 years has been suspended for allegedly abusing at least 19 victims.
Father Pierre de Maillard was suspended earlier this summer and is serving out a period of "prayer and penance" in a retreat house in Montgardin in the French Alps, nicknamed the "Golden Prison" — a place where problem priests are sent.

It was featured in a 2017 Swedish documentary on SSPX sex crimes and cover-up. It was also featured in a French article in 2011, when it was first established, the SSPX being less than forthright about its purpose.

"They told me that they were going to welcome about 10 priests," said Montgardin Mayor Roger Mamo. "I understood that it was a contemplative house. They seemed nice to me at first, but I don't know more."

The SSPX failed to inform locals they would actually be housing credibly accused sexual predators.

The SSPX has suffered a devastating string of bad press this year, from both Catholic and secular media in the United States and abroad, kicked off by Church Militant's groundbreaking exposé in April revealing a wideranging criminal investigation of the SSPX in Kansas for sex abuse and cover-up.

Reports showed a pattern of failing to report abusers to police, sending them away to do brief stints of "prayer and penance" in remote locations (including Montgardin) before reinstating them to active ministry, where they often went on to abuse again — a pattern followed by dioceses in the United States and all over the world, first exposed on a major scale by Boston Globe's Spotlight team in 2002, leading to a national reckoning on sex abuse in the Catholic Church in America.

While the SSPX has been in existence since the 1970s, its own sex abuse problem has largely flown under the radar. A couple of foreign sites — including the Stop Pedos Trad site and Le Livre Noir de la FSSPX ("The Black Book of the SSPX") — did pioneering work to first expose sex abuse and corruption in the Society, leading to enough consternation in Europe that Bp. Fellay threatened to sue the Stop Pedos site — using one of Iceland's largest and most expensive law firms.
"Good faithful trads,'" the website authors wrote in a post exposing how much money Fellay was spending to shut down their site, "when you deprive yourself in order to give 100 francs (or 100€, it doesn't matter) 'for a good seminar' or 'for a good Catholic school,' know that this money will go up in smoke in an instant to handsomely pay lawyers who try to hush up the denunciation of pedophiles and the superiors who protect them."

Both websites are invaluable resources recounting cases of abuse and cover-up, compiled by firsthand witnesses and victims of SSPX clergy, and are worth further examination by investigative journalists. While the Stop Pedos site is now defunct, the archived version is still available. The Black Book has the original 2016 version as well as an updated 2019 version.
The SSPX was forced to face its first major reckoning this year after Church Militant's international investigation exposing corruption and cover-up in the highest ranks of the Society, which led to numerous public statements downplaying abuse (some of which have been removed from their site) as well as the establishment of an "independent review board" in the U.S. district to review claims of abuse. While the SSPX has been asked to publish the names of those on the review board in the interest of transparency, it has yet to do so.

In July, victims and their parents went to Fr. Laurent Ramé, Maillard's former superior at Our Lady of the Rosary priory in Saint-Germain-de-Prinçay, Vendée, to report the abuse. In all, Ramé learned of at least 19 alleged victims — all minors, including both boys and girls.

In light of Church Militant's numerous exposés on SSPX mishandling of abuse allegations, Ramé bucked protocol and chose not to go to French district headquarters first (as mandated by Society guidelines) and instead went to law enforcement (the brigade de gendarmerie in Chantonnay), which immediately launched an investigation. Afterwards Ramé informed district headquarters in Suresnes, just outside Paris.
The matter already in police hands, Superior General Davide Pagliarani had little choice but to suspend Maillard, sending him to Montgardin while French officials investigate the criminal allegations.

Contrast the Maillard case with another recent SSPX sex scandal that has outraged local Catholics for its grievous mishandling — that of Fr. Guillaume d'Orsanne.

D'Orsanne was accused by a former student in 2017 of child sex abuse, accusations made known to then-superior general Bp. Bernard Fellay and his assistant, Fr. Alain-Marc Nély. His local superior, Fr. Christian Bouchacourt, refused to take any action against him.

Bouchacourt is now assistant to the current SSPX superior general, Fr. Pagliarani.

Fellay left the priest at his assignment at l'École Sainte-Marie in Saint-Malo, in northwest France. Thus d'Orsanne (who has denied the allegation) continued in his post at the SSPX school for nearly two years, with full access to children — with leadership's knowledge and approval.

After a brief reassignment at French district headquarters in Suresnes, d'Orsanne was moved just this summer to the well-known Saint-Nicolas-du-Chardonnet in Paris, a church swarming with children. Church Militant has learned the parents of the alleged victim are outraged. A fuller exposé of this recent scandal is forthcoming.

With regard to Maillard, Church Militant contacted local police to confirm the investigation, but received no response. It is protocol for French police not to respond to media queries during an active criminal investigation.
Church Militant also sent queries to SSPX headquarters in Menzingen, Switzerland, asking leadership to confirm that Maillard has been suspended over allegations of pedophilia, what they plan on doing with him during the investigation and also asking whether they knew of prior allegations of abuse and how they handled them. In spite of the Society's recent pledges of "transparency," leadership has failed to respond.
Mentality of Entitlement

It's believed Maillard's abuse took place at multiple assignments over the years, which included schools and chapels where he offered catechism lessons for children — including in the Vendée, the region where Maillard was reportedly raised and which helped shape his views of the world: very much an "us against them" mentality, according to one of Maillard's former parishioners.
The Vendée was the site of the heroic Catholic uprising against the atheistic, freemasonic Reign of Terror during the 18th-century French Revolution, which ended up wiping out around 15% of the local population — referred to as a French "genocide."

Local Catholics, particularly in the countryside, tend to be "very observant, very docile to priests, very secretive," according to the former parishioner, who asked not to be named in order to protect his family, which has suffered sex abuse at the hands of the SSPX. "They don't really like to do anything with outsiders."

"The teaching staff still had this very strong Vendéan spirit of 'Everything that isn't us, everything that isn't really, really conservative Catholic, and everything that isn't royalist ... is alien and should be discouraged,'" he noted, going on to say Maillard "certainly has that spirit."

"He's very entitled," he went on. "He has an aristocratic background. ... He believes that people owe him."
Like most abusers, Maillard would target the vulnerable "working class," he explained, "because he knows they're very docile towards the priests and towards most aristocratic society — because they most likely wouldn't believe their kids, or they would not complain."

"Or he would say, hand on heart, because he was their social superior — because God made him an aristocrat and not a peasant — it is their responsibility to satisfy his needs," he said. "He has that very archaic worldview."
A Long History in the SSPX

Maillard was born in France on July 31, 1967, and was ordained a priest on June 29, 1993 in Écône, Switzerland. In a tragic twist of irony, he was assigned to Brussels to be successor to pedophile priest Fr. Philippe Peignot, found guilty in 2014 by an SSPX canonical tribunal of child sex abuse.

Peignot's case is particularly egregious because two superiors general — Fr. Franz Schmidberger and Bp. Bernard Fellay — lifted a ban on Peignot that had prohibited him from being around children. Peignot had abused five boys from 1985–1987, his most famous victim Vincent Lambert, the quadriplegic who became a central figure in the end-of-life debate in France.

It was in fact Peignot's abuse that led Lambert on a downward spiral of drinking and drugs, culminating in the drunk driving accident that landed him in the hospital with a broken back.
Peignot's crimes were never reported to police by his superiors. Instead, he was sent to Lourdes to do a year of "prayer and penance" before being returned to priestly ministry, where he abused again.

It would take the Vatican ordering the SSPX in 2013 to initiate a canonical trial against Peignot that would lead to his exit from the Society. He sought refuge in Bp. Richard Williamson's Resistance, where the pederast priest ministers to this day, with free access to boys.

Some years later, another pedophile priest, Fr. Frédéric Abbet, would be assigned to live in the Brussels priory under the same roof as young boys whom he would go on to abuse — thanks to Bp. Fellay once again ignoring a ban forbidding Abbet from being around children.

Thus the SSPX Brussels priory bears the distinction of having housed at least three pedophile priests.

Maillard left Brussels in 1997, sent to L'étoile du matin academy in Eguelshardt, in Lorraine, France, where he worked with children until his next assignment in Conflans-Ste-Honorine, a chapel served by the priory of Mantes-la-Jolie, near Paris. There he was placed in charge of catechism lessons to children and teens.
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Father Pierre de Maillard blessing a plaque in memory of Gen. Nicholas Stofflet of the Vendée. 4:02
Before his stint in Brussels, Maillard was reportedly ill and seeking prayers after being diagnosed with testicular cancer.

In 2004 he was assigned to the Nantes SSPX priory, where he lived for six years. In 2010, he was tasked with inaugurating the new priory in St.-Germain de Prinçay along with Fr. Ramé. Maillard remained there until last year, when he was sent to a priory in Gastines, in northwestern France.
French Commission Investigating SSPX Abuse

At the request of the French bishops in 2018, an independent government commission was established in France specifically to look into cases of Church sex abuse. The Commission Indépendante sur les Abus Sexuels dans l'Eglise (CIASE) is currently digging into diocesan secret archives, collecting people's testimony, gathering evidence and preparing a significant report of clerical sex abuse in France over the past 70 years. It will include recommendations to the French bishops on how to protect children and handle claims of abuse.

In addition to cases throughout the Church in France, the commission is looking specifically at cases in the SSPX, involving clergy or laity. Church Militant has confirmed that several SSPX victims have already submitted their testimony to the CIASE.

The CIASE is actively soliciting testimonies from victims and witnesses. The deadline to be included in its 2021 report is Oct. 31, 2020. Individuals can contact the commission at victimes@ciase.fr, or by dialing U.S. country code (011)+33-1 80 52 33 55. Testimonies can also be physically mailed to Service CIASE, BP 30132 - 75525 Paris cedex 11, France.
Empire of lies: SSPX infiltration of Catholic Media

Rallying trad outfits to their cause
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/the-sspx-infiltration-of-catholic-media                          

Louise Sorbonne, November 6, 2020 - Images/videos omitted; available in earlier report
"The truth doesn't care about our needs or wants. It does not care about our governments, our ideologies. ... It will lie in wait for all time." -From HBO series Chernobyl
Throughout the early part of the 1990s, the now-defunct Catholic magazine Fidelity published a series of articles chronicling the seedy underbelly of the Society of St. Pius X (SSPX).

These articles, most of which are still available online, contain a variety of horror stories of bizarre, cult-like behavior, SSPX priests excessively fascinated with Nazis, militia activity, Soviet-style forced medication of dissidents and a general banquet of sadism and cruelty for which a number of members of the SSPX have always been known by Catholics with their pulse on the irregular traditionalist group (anyone who doubts the complete and total absence of charity or even common decency within SSPX diehards need look no further than SSPX supporters' comments on Church Militant's social media accounts).

Fidelity's work did not have a tremendous effect in the Catholic community, simply because it only enhanced what Catholics already knew about the SSPX.

During the latter part of the 20th and early portion of the 21st century, most American Catholics were either divided along the lines of conservative JPII Catholics and liberal Vatican II Catholics — both of whom viewed the SSPX as a schismatic sect that was, at best, a group of very strange people.

For its part, the SSPX in the United States did not attempt to change this image.

Although defending itself against charges of schism and protesting the 1988 excommunications of its bishops, the American wing of the SSPX, under the tremendous influence of Bp. Richard Williamson and the culture he created as rector of the SSPX American seminary, seemed content to dig in and hide out in its chapels and enclaves in St. Mary's, Kansas

 HYPERLINK "https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/spotlight-sympathetic-to-perverts" \t "_blank" ; Post Falls, Idaho and Walton, Kentucky.
Despite alleged ties to militia groups as well as a long history of ties with various post-World War II manifestations of German National Socialism, the SSPX, for most of its history, could supposedly boast that, unlike the mainstream Catholic Church, it was not plagued by any sex scandals.

This turned out not to be true — but it would take decades for the world to learn that.

Throughout the early history of the group, the majority of SSPX adherents were content to be ignored by the world. Its status as a marginal group changed, however, when Pope Benedict XVI lifted the excommunications of the four SSPX bishops in January 2009.

The Holy Father's lifting of the excommunications coincided with a renaissance in interest in traditional Catholicism among young people, as the tidal wave of conservative American Catholic culture inaugurated by Pope John Paul II's 1993 World Youth Day visit to Denver crashed against the 2002 Boston Spotlight revelations, which demonstrated that the reform inaugurated by John Paul was largely a paper tiger.

Many Catholics, disenchanted with conservative Catholicism and its liberal predecessor, began testing the waters with Catholic tradition, and some even found themselves pulled toward the SSPX, whose episcopal leadership was no longer excommunicated.

At the same time, Bp. Williamson's notorious "Holocaust interview" further proved to be a blessing in disguise for the SSPX, for by expelling His Excellency in 2012, the SSPX could claim that they had put their more reactionary past behind them.
The emergence of several splinter groups from the SSPX, known collectively as "The Resistance," who protested the SSPX's overtures toward reconciliation with Rome, further increased the profile of the SSPX, for the Society could claim that all of the "crazies" were migrating out of the SSPX and into these splinter groups.

Spearheaded by Angelus Press editor James Vogel, the SSPX began a massive PR campaign during the Pope Francis era, reaching out to any and all forms of conservative and traditionalist Catholic media, hoping to spin a new image for the formerly marginalized group.

Many believed that these overtures were sincere, and SSPX sincerely desired to enter into full communion with the Church.

However, with the recent tidal wave of media coverage in outlets like Church Militant, Catholic News Agency, The Kansas City Star and others, it now appears the SSPX may have had an ulterior motive in their own PR blitz.

As has been reported by multiple outlets, the Kansas Bureau of Investigation (KBI) has been overwhelmed with claims of abuse by SSPX members not only in the state of Kansas, but throughout the United States. It launched its investigation into the SSPX in 2019, as part of a wider criminal probe into clergy sex abuse. While the SSPX was aware of the investigation in 2019, the public was not — until it was exposed in April of this year.

Many victims have come forward claiming that the weird, cultish behavior of the SSPX reported in the 1990s by Fidelity Magazine has by no means gone away.

In the wake of these revelations, some media outlets have come to the defense of the SSPX — or have avoided reporting on the matter altogether.

As the story of the SSPX grows darker and more sinister, a second story has developed: It seems that, in an attempt to get ahead of the news about the KBI criminal investigation, the SSPX tried to effect a media coup at several Catholic journalistic centers.

The first of these Catholic media outlets infected by the SSPX is Catholic Family News (CFN).
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Stephen Kokx is a writer for Catholic Family News, which has routinely and strenuously defended the SSPX

While The Angelus is the official SSPX journal, CFN has, under the current editorial direction of Dr. Brian McCall, a law professor at the University of Oklahoma, become a de facto SSPX newspaper. Since the recent revelations of systematic abuse and cover-up by SSPX priests and laity, CFN has gone to bat for the SSPX and has attacked those trying to expose the abuse and corruption.

Although allegedly having lost significant readership owing to the decline in print consumption, CFN was once considered among the premier traditional Catholic journals. Headed by the late John Vennari, who himself attended SSPX chapels, CFN was, nonetheless, not originally an SSPX newspaper per se. Vennari, like The Fatima Center's Fr. Nicholas Gruner, had an engaging personality, and much of CFN's following was, in fact, linked to the person of Vennari.

Indeed, much of traditional Catholic culture in the United States, ironically paralleling the JPII conservative Catholics whom the traditionalists despised, is built around personalities.

Following Vennari's death on April 4, 2017, writer and catechist Matt Gaspers succeeded John Vennari as editor. It is important to note that Vennari had handpicked Gaspers to be his successor. For some mysterious reason, little over a year later, Gaspers was demoted to assistant editor and was replaced at the helm of CFN by Brian McCall.

It has been speculated that this was a power play by the SSPX, who regularly advertises in CFN in order to bring it more tightly under their control (possibly in anticipation of the leaking of the KBI investigation) — although loudly supportive of the SSPX now, Gaspers was not initially a member.

McCall is an SSPX loyalist, attending an SSPX chapel in Oklahoma City and supporting SSPX schools. He was associated with what appears to be a now-defunct men's group in St. Mary's called "The St. Joseph's Businessman Association" and has spoken regularly at the Angelus Press Conference, the SSPX's premiere yearly gathering in America.

Under McCall's helm, CFN regularly features (sometimes multiple) monthly columns by SSPX priests and, of course, features ads for various SSPX appendages like their publishing house, Angelus Press, in Kansas City, Missouri.

Unlike some other trad outfits, which have rebranded themselves as more mainstream traditionalist publications and have refrained from defending the SSPX from the avalanche of allegations levied against them, CFN refuses to adapt to the Traditionalism 2.0 of the Francis Era and has shown itself willing to defend the SSPX, no matter the cost.
In addition to CFN, the American wing of the SSPX has also, it is alleged, attached its tentacles to other Catholic media outlets.

The SSPX has even placed what appears to be a mole in LifeSiteNews: Stephen Kokx, who gained attention after Abp. Carlo Mario Viganò responded to some of his public questions, and whose response contained praise of SSPX founder Marcel Lefebvre.
Catholic Family News broadcast Abp. Viganò's remarks on Abp. Lefebvre as an endorsement of the SSPX as a whole — something Church Militant confirmed directly with Viganò it was never his intention to do.

Speaking with the archbishop, he made clear his only intention was to praise Lefebvre for his original vision of protecting tradition and orthodoxy. Viganò had been up to that time unaware of the massive sex abuse scandal embroiling the Society, and under no circumstances would ever condone it or defend it.

But Stephen Kokx, Brian McCall and Matt Gaspers at CFN — with the help of other Catholic media personalities — erroneously touted Viganò's comments as a wholesale embrace and promotion of the SSPX. Even after Church Militant contacted Kokx to correct the record, no clarification was issued by CFN.

Kokx is Assistant Director of Digital Marketing for LifeSiteNews and an author at CFN.

Stephen Kokx appears to have close ties with the SSPX and has written articles praising the Society as a "life raft" for those seeking the sacraments.

Kokx is the author heading up an investigation into the claims of abuse by SSPX members on behalf of LifeSiteNews. His most recent article, the first in a series of reports on SSPX abuse, while seeming to expose abuse in its ranks, also appears to be an attempt to exonerate the Society of wrongdoing.

Indeed, several alleged victims have expressed concerns that Kokx's investigation will be a whitewash, and that his main aim is to help the Society by downplaying abuse and cover-up while calling victims' testimony into question. Some have used the word "harassment" to describe Kokx's questioning.

The fact that Kokx, an apparent SSPX loyalist, is undertaking an "investigation" into abuse in the SSPX is an insult to victims and is an uncharacteristic blemish on LifeSite's otherwise solid reputation.

Kokx, however, is not the only SSPX adherent burrowing into a Catholic media organization. Ironically enough, the assistant editor of Culture Wars, Dave Reilly, also has a cozy relationship with the SSPX.

Reilly initially began his media career working for his father's radio station WHLM in Bloomsburg, Pennsylvania. He was forced to resign from WHLM after it was revealed that he attended the August 2017 "Unite the Right" rally in Charlottesville.
Following his dox by various leftist organizations, Reilly fled to St. Mary's, Kansas, the SSPX stronghold in the United States, which has been the epicenter of abuse allegations and some of whose members are under criminal investigation by the Kansas Bureau of Investigation.

After a period of going dark, Reilly then obtained a position working for Dr. E Michael Jones at Culture Wars Magazine in South Bend, Indiana.

Reilly's employment at Culture Wars is curious because, as editor of Fidelity Magazine, Jones exposed the corruption in the SSPX in the 1990s.

In fact, when Church Militant first aired its groundbreaking exposé on the SSPX in April, Reilly threatened to sue Church Militant over 24 seconds of use of some of his SSPX footage. Reilly filed a copyright claim with YouTube, only for YouTube to side with Church Militant and determine that use of the footage in its 47-minute documentary was fair use, a defense against any copyright claims

Is it possible that Dave Reilly, Stephen Kokx and Brian McCall (and perhaps others) are part of a wider preventative, damage-control effort to head off any major journalistic exposé that would reveal to the Catholic world the depths of the corruption in the SSPX?

Although CFN has lost a tremendous amount of influence and reach after the death of Vennari, the other media outlets infected by the SSPX are, if anything, increasing in profile and power during the digital age.

As the tidal wave of allegations against the SSPX began to hit, it would have been smart for the SSPX to neutralize friendly and far-reaching media outlets. However, whatever strong and legitimate criticism might be levied at some of these authors for the alleged complicity in protecting the SSPX, they, at the very least, have the excuse of being dutiful members of the SSPX.

Former members and victims have repeatedly used the word "cult" in reference to the SSPX, as the group demands loyalty above all else, a rejection of those outside the SSPX ("no salvation outside the SSPX" is a common theme) and unquestioning obedience. Those who stray from these are named and shamed, sometimes from the pulpit. Thus far, the above-named authors have proven themselves loyal comrades in service of their collective master.

But such loyalty, to the detriment of truth and justice, inflicts further pain and humiliation on the hundreds of individuals who have had their lives destroyed by the Society.

It is well worth asking why certain traditional media outfits have vigorously defended a Society riddled with abuse, or otherwise why some remain so silent. Could it be that a sizeable portion of their fans, supporters and donors are SSPX loyalists, and they fear backlash as well as loss of donations?

Perhaps worse than these SSPX drones are those Catholic media personalities whom, it is alleged, have sold their souls for SSPX Patreon and PayPal donations. Those personalities (who will remain anonymous, for now) are not members of the SSPX but are, in truth, grifters who have made entire careers bouncing from one fad in the Church to another, always holding out their hand for donations and book purchases from confused, well-meaning Catholics looking for a harbor in the storm.
More than those journalists who have the excuse of being inundated in the collectivist, literally demonic, spiritual poison of the SSPX, these grifters will have to answer to Our Lord on Judgement Day for every lie and deception they peddled or every act of abuse or cover-up they willfully ignored because they lacked the courage to speak out against evil, while they retain their SSPX-friendly fan base on earth.

They will be held accountable, before Almighty God, for their actions.
Louise Sorbonne is a globetrotting independent researcher and former SSPX parishioner who submitted this article for consideration after noticing worrying trends in traditionalist media, which are either coming to the defense of the SSPX, in spite of documented evidence of sex abuse and cover-up, or otherwise remaining silent when they have a duty to speak.
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UN PRÊTRE DE LA FSSPX DEMANDE À MGR FELLAY DE CESSER DE PROTÉGER DES PRÉDATEURS
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/un-pretre-de-la-fsspx-demande-a-mgr-fellay
Christine Niles, June 9, 2020

LA FSSPX COUPABLE DE NÉGLIGENCE CRIMINELLE
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/la-fsspx-coupable-de-negligence-criminelle
Christine Niles, June 24, 2020

COMMENT LA FSSPX A OFFERT À UN PRÉDATEUR SEXUEL DE MULTIPLES OCCASIONS
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/comment-la-fsspx-a-offert-a-un-predateur-sexuel-de-multiples-occasions
Christine Niles, June 30, 2020

COMMENT LES ÉVÊQUES DE LA FSSPX ONT ORDONNÉ UN PRÉDATEUR HOMO
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/comment-les-eveques-de-la-fsspx-ont-ordonne-un-predateur-homo
Christine Niles, July 16, 2020

UN PRÊTRE DE LA FSSPX RATTRAPÉ PAR UN SCANDALE SEXUEL
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/un-pretredela-fsspxrattrape-par-un-scandale-sexuel
Christine Niles, August 17, 2020

QUAND LA POLICE PROTÉGEAIT UN VIOLEUR D’ENFANTS EMPLOYÉ PAR LA FSSPX
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/quand-la-police-protegeait-un-violeur-denfantsemployeparla-fsspx 

Christine Niles, September 4, 2020
TÉMOIGNAGE D’UNE RESCAPÉE
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/temoignage-dune-rescapee
Christine Niles, October 4, 2020
UN PRÊTRE PÉDOPHILE DE PLUS À MONTGARDIN !
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/un-pretre-pedophile-de-plus-a-montgardin 

Christine Niles, October 10, 2020
LA FSSPX INFILTRÉE PAR DES AGRESSEURS SEXUELS
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/la-fsspx-infiltree-par-des-agresseurs-sexuels
Dr. John Lamont, January 6, 2021

FSSPX DEU A UM PEDÓFILO ACESSO À CRIANÇAS REPETIDAMENTE
https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/fsspx-deu-a-um-pedofilo-acesso-a-criancas
Church Militant, March 8, 2021
Press Release Concerning Church Militant Article Regarding the SSPX
https://sspx.org/en/news-events/news/press-release-concerning-church-militant-article-regarding-sspx-49433?fbclid=IwAR1Ut9L0Sa_DyLBWFJ4aMDlBICpFhiBpeyTkJYhcQB6eEwrMQraZdrvCl9o
July 24. 2019

On July 23, 2019, Church Militant published an article entitled "Is the SSPX Sheltering a Sexual Predator?" by James Baresel. This misleading and slanderous report deserves clarification. Both charity and justice should be hallmarks of any Catholic.
IS THE SSPX SHELTERING A SEXUAL PREDATOR? 26 JULY 2019 - FR. JAMES MCLUCAS
http://ephesians-511.net/recent/docs/IS_THE_SSPX_SHELTERING_A_SEXUAL_PREDATOR.doc
History

The main accusation centers around Fr. James McLucas, a diocesan priest who occasionally helps the Society of Saint Pius X. While not a member of the SSPX, Fr. McLucas was named in the August 2018 Pennsylvania grand jury report. Even though the information in the report was inaccurate, it has not stopped secular and Catholic outfits from labeling him a "sexual predator." (For more on the broader question, please see: https://catholicherald.co.uk/magazine/the-trouble-with-lists-of-credibly-accused-priests/) As no civil or canonical proceedings have ever found Fr. McLucas guilty, nor has he ever been charged with any crime, these accusations are profoundly defamatory.

Fr. McLucas’ lawyer issued the following statement in 2018 when the recent accusations were first made:

While Father McLucas was not charged with any crime, the shocking and horrible accusations in the report - without published evidence, without trial, and without due process of law - will nevertheless blacken his reputation and destroy him in his profession.

 

Context

Less than two weeks ago, Church Militant, quoting Pope Francis, used similar terms to defend Father Perrone against the Archdiocese of Detroit:

The right to defense: the principle of natural and canon law of presumption of innocence must also be safeguarded until the guilt of the accused is proven. Therefore, it is necessary to prevent the lists of the accused being published, even by the dioceses, before the preliminary investigation and the definitive condemnation. (https://www.churchmilitant.com/news/article/msgr-bugarins-ignorance-damaged-fr-perrones-reputation)

 

The Role of Church Militant
In both situations, Church Militant assumes the place of a judge that only civil or religious authorities are entitled to.

Furthermore, Church Militant displays a double standard. Fr. Perrone and Fr. McLucas are both accused. Church Militant defends the one and attacks the other. They play the advocate for Fr. Perrone and the prosecutor for Fr. McLucas. The same principles they enunciate and hold sacred to defend Fr. Perrone, they trample on when it comes to Fr. McLucas.

SSPX Response

Speaking of Church Militant’s methodology, we must draw attention to this sentence: "SSPX priest Nicholas Stamos informed me by phone on July 18 that McLucas is still participating in the organization's work."
Fr. Nicholas Stamos wishes to make clear: he has never heard of, nor spoken to, the author of this article. He had one call from earlier in the summer, who apparently falsely said he was an old friend of Fr. McLucas, and that he wished to get in contact. Fr. Stamos directed him to a priory that Fr. McLucas sometimes visits. Neither Fr. Stamos nor anyone at the latter priory ever heard from Church Militant. Is this Catholic journalism?

Protection of All

The Society of Saint Pius X is committed to protecting all minors and vulnerable adults and to cooperate fully with civil and ecclesiastical authorities. In addition, we are committed to both helping victims as well as those that are accused. We do not unduly assume the role of judge and leave any investigation to the proper authorities.

From our internal policy on these matters:

Our commitment includes the protection of children (i.e. minors), and vulnerable adults from harm, and the protection of workers from false allegations...We provide individual care and counsel both for the abuse victim and his/her family...The accused is to be treated with dignity and respect. Clergy will seek opportunity to provide individual care and counsel both for the accused and his/her family until the investigation is completed.

 

Why the SSPX Exists

We stress that the Society of St. Pius X was founded by Archbishop Lefebvre to form and help Catholic priests. As our Statutes state, the central charism of the SSPX is the Catholic priesthood:
[The Society’s activities] include all the works necessary for the formation of priests and whatever pertains thereto, whether the candidates be destined to be members of the Society or not…
The second purpose of the Society is to assist priests in their sanctification by providing them with opportunities for retreats and recollections. The Society’s houses could be headquarters for priestly associations, for third orders, for periodicals and magazines dedicated to the sanctification of priests…
The Society will willingly come to the assistance of aged, infirm, and even unfaithful priests.
Faithful to her mission, rather than condemning and casting the first stone, the Society comes to the help of priests to restore their priesthood and sanctify themselves.
Conclusion
To Church Militant: we ask you retract this scandalous article. It is easy to contact us. If you are more concerned with the truth than clicks, you can still make reparation. We simply ask that you apply the same principles to your article about Fr. McLucas that you do to your articles about Fr. Perrone. In the meantime, for your readers--whatever they think of the SSPX--we hope this clarification shows which side maintains journalistic integrity, and more importantly, Catholic charity and justice.
TRADITIONALISM FILES AT THIS MINISTRY’S WEBSITE AS ON 1 JUNE 2021 (175+)

http://ephesians-511.net/recent/docs/TRADITIONALISM_FILES_AT_THIS_MINISTRYS_WEBSITE.doc
